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Korean Re is making progress,
steady but surely, in achieving
its vision of becoming one of the
world’s leading reinsurers.
Throughout 2017, we never
stopped endeavoring to enhance
our global competitiveness,
backed by strong and stable
growth.
Our business growth came in
the face of rapidly evolving
market and regulatory
environments as well as
heavy losses from natural
catastrophes.
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Financial Highlights
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

FY 2017
(KRW)
For the Year

Gross Written Premiums

Net Written Premiums

Net Income

04

At the Year End
Total Assets

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Total Shareholders' Equity

7,208.1

4,431.5

133.0

117.4

10,065.3

9,304.2

2,163.0

1,999.5

5,157.8

RBC Ratio*

Combined Ratio

4,767.8

FY 2016
(KRW)

ROE

5,690.7

4,697.8

3,999.4

160.0

136.2

9,581.1

7,851.4

4,964.1

4,067.9

2,111.6

1,730.4

221.1

222.2

1.4

1.7

98.8

6.4

1,068

FY 2016
(USD)

6,684.5

98.4

ROA

EPS (KRW, USD)

6,360.8

5,021.8

Financial Ratio (%)

Payout Ratio

FY 2017
(USD)

25.9

1,304

23.3

A
A

Financial Strength Ratings

A.M. Best
S&P

Total Shareholders’ Equity

2016
2017

Gross Written Premiums

8.1

0.94
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1.11

* Solvency Margin Ratio
✽Note: All figures are based on K-IFRS. The conversion from KRW to USD is shown here and in the rest of this report for information purposes only.

2016
2017

221.1

RBC Ratio

Stable
Stable

(Unit: KRW billion)

2,111.6

2,163.0

(Unit: KRW billion)

6,684.5

7,208.1

Total Assets

2016
2017

Net Income

2016
2017

%

(Unit: KRW billion)

9,581.1

10,065.3

(Unit: KRW billion)

160.0

133.0
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Throughout 2017, we never stopped endeavoring to enhance our global competitiveness backed

In fact, 2017 was the second costliest year for the global

The life insurance market contracted by 4.9 percent, while the

environments as well as heavy losses from natural catastrophes.

insured losses worldwide came to more than USD 130 billion.
This was 2.6 times the annual average natural catastrophe

the sales of savings insurance and retirement annuity plans was

by strong and stable growth in the face of rapidly evolving reinsurance business and regulatory

insurance and reinsurance industry as natural catastrophe
losses since 2000. The record-breaking natural catastrophe

one of the key downside factors.

events included Hurricanes Harvey, Irma and Maria (HIM) in

Korean Re has achieved an average annualized growth of 5.1

alone cost the global (re)insurance industry USD 80 billion and

percent or so in Korea. This would not have been possible

the United States and the Caribbean. These three hurricanes
set new records in wind speed, lasting time and the amount of
rainfall they brought.

Despite the devastating natural catastrophe losses, we

delivered strong underwriting results for 2017 as we focused
on securing profitable accounts from around the world based

percent over the past five years, with a market share of 60
without our 55 years of experience and knowledge in the
domestic market and trustworthy relationships with local
primary insurers. As our growth hinges on the development

of the local insurance market, we will remain committed to
achieving joint growth with our business partners.

on the knowledge and expertise we have built in the domestic

As an important part of our growth strategy, we have been

underwriting profit and a combined ratio of 98.4 percent in a

becoming one of the top global reinsurers. Since we announced

and Asian markets. We are proud to report an increase in
year when the global (re)insurance industry was hard hit by

unusually large natural catastrophe losses. Our years of effort to
diversify the company’s business portfolio showed its value in

06

non-life insurance market grew by 2.4 percent. A decrease in

boosting our underwriting performance. We have added nonproperty risks to our book of business to deal with softening
market conditions in property lines and spread our natural
catastrophe risk exposures.

We reported a 7.8 percent increase in gross written premiums
to KRW 7,208.1 billion for 2017. Our net written premiums

setting our sights on overseas markets with the goal of
Vision 2050: Value-Creating Reinsurance Leader in 2014, we

have been broadening our global network and presence.
We established a subsidiary at Lloyd’s in April 2015 and two

branches in Labuan, Malaysia, in July 2017 and in Dubai, the
UAE in January 2018. We have been awaiting approval for our

branch in Shanghai from the Chinese insurance supervisory
authorities, and work has been underway to open a new
European subsidiary in Switzerland by the end of 2019.

Moving into 2018 when we are celebrating our 55th anniversary,

increased by 6.9 percent to KRW 5,021.8 billion. Paid claims

we renew our commitment to realizing our vision of becoming

loss ratio improved to 79.9 percent. Net operating expenses

always keep a watchful eye on market changes and make

increased by KRW 276.1 billion to KRW 3,726.9 billion but the

climbed by 12.6 percent to KRW 925.8 billion. We managed

to record a solid net income of KRW 133 billion for the year,
although it was down from the previous year when we had
posted the second-highest net income in our history.

a value-creating reinsurance leader in the world. We will

swift responses to any changes that could affect our business

and clients. This ability to read trends and respond nimbly will
be essential for us to become a player that leads the global
reinsurance market.

In terms of total assets, 2017 was a record year for us as we saw

We thank you for your continued support for Korean Re and

our total assets grew by KRW 484.2 billion year over year to KRW

business partners to bring growth and value to all stakeholders.

our total assets surpass the KRW 10 trillion mark. The value of
10,065.3 billion as of late December 2017. Our invested assets

look forward to working more closely with our clients and other

amounted to KRW 5,623.5 billion, up KRW 319 billion year over
year.

Jong-Gyu Won
President and CEO

The Korean insurance market, the 7th largest in the world by

premium income, continued to slow down in 2017, with total

premiums falling by 1.9 percent compared to the previous year
amid improving but still weak macroeconomic conditions.

Jong-Gyu Won
President and CEO
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Board of Management
Jong-Gyu Won

Doo-Sup Chung

Mr. Won is Chief Executive Officer of Korean Re.
He took office in June 2013.

Team

President & CEO

Managing Director
(Sep. 2010)

Since joining Korean Reinsurance Company in 1986, Mr. Won has

served the company for 30 years in various capacities including as

· IT Team
· Risk Management Team

Executive Managing Director from 2011 to 2013 and Chairman of
the Korean Re Risk Management Special Committee.

He was promoted to Managing Director in September 2007

and supervised the Accounting, Marine, and Claims & Survey

Departments for three years. Between 2005 and 2007, he headed

the Accounting Department as General Manager, prior to which he
served as Representative of New York Liaison Office from 1998 to

2001. Mr. Won holds an M.B.A degree from Yonsei University in Seoul.
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Moo-Seop Lee

Managing Director
(June 2015)
Team

· Property Team 1
· Engineering Team
· Casualty Team
· Accounting Team
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Joon-Kyo Kim

Chul-Min Jang

June 2017 Executive Managing Director
June 2013 Managing Director

Team

Executive Managing Director

Managing Director
(June 2015)

Team
· Strategic Planning Team
· Management Support Team
· Finance & Actuarial Team
· Asset Management Team
· Global Project Team

· General Affairs Team
· Property Team 2
· Marine Team
· Long-term & Motor Team

Jai-Kwang Kim
Managing Director
(June 2016)
Team

· Compliance Team

Ki-In Cho

Standing Auditor

June 2015 Standing Auditor, Korean Re
2013 President & CEO, Korea Insurance Institute
2010 Director of Internal Audit Office, Financial Supervisory
Service
Team
· Auditing Team

Yung-Heub Song
Managing Director
(June 2017)
Team

· Global Business Team
· Life Team
· Claims & Survey Team
· Product Development Team
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2017 was one of the worst years
for the global insurance and
reinsurance industry as natural
catastrophe insured losses
worldwide came to more than USD
130 billion.
Despite the massive natural
catastrophe losses, we delivered
strong underwriting results for
2017 as we focused on securing
profitable accounts from around
the world based on the knowledge
and expertise we have built in the
domestic and Asian markets.
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Korean Re reported a substantial increase in

underwriting profit and a combined ratio of 98.4
percent in a year defined by massive natural

catastrophe losses. Our net underwriting income
excluding foreign exchange effects surged by 54
percent to KRW 79.4 billion, the second highest

ever, on the back of strict underwriting discipline
and portfolio readjustment.

Our strict underwriting policy and well-established
relationships with clients and brokers helped us
secure more profitable business opportunities.
Our years of effort to diversify the company’s

Underwriting Profit

business portfolio also showed its value in boosting
our underwriting results for the year.

(Unit: KRW billion)

FY 2017

51.6

FY 2016

FY 2015

FY 2014

FY 2013

20.6

42.3

✽ Excluding foreign exchange effects
✽✽ FY 2013 covers nine months from April to December

79.4

95.7

Corporate Information
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Since we announced Vision 2050:
Value-Creating Reinsurance Leader
in 2014, we have been broadening
our global network and presence.
Work has been underway to open
a new European subsidiary in
Switzerland by the end of 2019, with
the aim of growing our business in
the European market.

>>>

Summary of 2017

Global Network
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Korean Re plans to establish a subsidiary in Switzerland
by 2019 with the aim of growing its business in the
European market.

The company expects the volume of its European

business to increase from the current USD 200 million
to over USD 300 million by 2025.

Europe is the second largest insurance market in the

world, after North America, with a global market share
of around 30 percent. Switzerland, in particular, is at

the center of the European reinsurance industry, with
59 reinsurers from across the world operating in the
country.

Tokyo

London

Liaison Office

Liaison Office
Korean Re Underwriting Ltd.

Seoul

Head Office
Beijing

Liaison Office

(Shanghai*)
Branch

Hong Kong

Worldwide Insurance Services, Ltd.

Singapore
Branch

(Zurich*)
Subsidiary
*To be established

Dubai

DIFC Branch

Labuan
Branch

New York

Liaison Office

Corporate Information
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Korean Re has maintained high
credit ratings from both S&P and
A.M. Best.

The financial strength of a reinsurer
is one of the most critical factors
for primary insurers in selecting a
reinsurance counterparty. We will
keep striving to enhance our financial
strength ratings based on our sound
risk-based capitalization and stable
earnings.

>>>

Summary of 2017

Financial Strength Ratings
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Financial
Strength Ratings
S&P Financial Strength Rating “A”
Business Risk Profile

- Very strong competitive position owing to the
reinsurer’s dominant position in the domestic
reinsurance market and strong direct relationships
with local clients

Global Ranking Development

- Upper adequate capital and earnings
- Intermediate risk position, with manageable foreign
exchange exposure and satisfactory investment
diversification
- Adequate financial flexibility underpinned by the
reinsurer’s record of raising funds through capital
markets

Operating Performance : Adequate
Business Profile: Favorable

Enterprise Risk Management : Appropriate
Outlook : Stable

(Source: A.M.Best’s rating report, December 05, 2017)

15

th

(Source: S&P’s rating report, June 30, 2017)

Balance Sheet : Strong

13

th

Outlook: Stable

A.M.Best Financial Strength Rating “A”

11

th

Financial Risk Profile

32

th

1998

(Source: A.M.Best)

2005

2008

10

th

Ranking by Gross Written Premiums

2014

2016
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Korean Re
New Year’s Concert 2017

March

We held our annual event to celebrate the New Year in downtown Seoul
on January 5. All the employees and their families were invited to a dinner
party and a classical concert. During the party, a group of new employees
performed dances to popular K-POP songs, which drew a hearty applause
from the audience.
The concert, played by the Seoul Philharmonic Orchestra, was a work of
ingenuity completed by the brilliant performance of Kunwoo Paik under
the baton of Antoni Wit. The Polish virtuoso, representing the 100-year-old
Warsaw Philharmonic Orchestra, conducted the concert with strength and
delicacy, during which the world-renowned pianist performed five piano
works including Ludwig van Beethoven’s Piano Concerto No.1 in C major,
Op. 15 and Manuel De Falla’s Orchestral Suites No.1 and No.2 from El sombrero de tres picos (The Three-Cornered Hat).

22

Signing of an MOU
with IRB Brasil RE

Korean Re signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with IRB Brasil
Re (IRB) to facilitate its expansion into the Latin American markets, which
have a huge growth potential.

On February 24, 2017, CEO Jong-Gyu Won met with CEO Tarcisio Godoy
and COO José Carlos Cardoso at IRB headquarters in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil
to enter into the arrangement.
Under the MOU, the two parties agreed to closely work together to produce more business in Brazil and Argentina, and to jointly assume reinsurance in the Latin American region in life and property lines in the coming
years. In addition, the two companies consented to actively share market
information with each other through the mutual exchange of underwriting
professionals.

Korean Re’s 54 anniversary
th

Financial Review

Corporate Information
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In celebration of its 54th anniversary, Korean Re held a ceremony at the
head office in the presence of all the executives and employees. CEO
Won addressed in his celebratory speech the company’s ongoing efforts
to expand overseas and some of the impressive achievements made
since its foundation on March 19, 1963. He also encouraged employees,
saying “As reinsurance professionals that handle risks, we should be
ready to overcome any future challenges wisely and bring continued
growth to our company.” At the ceremony, select employees received
commendations for their long-term service and exemplary contribution
to the company.

April

June

The 37th
Korean Re Corporate
Culture and Innovation
Workshop

From April 10 to 13, 2017, we held the 37th Korean Re Corporate Culture
and Innovation Workshop, a regular event organized to share insights on
how to further grow and develop the company.
All the executives and employees took part in one of the three rounds of
the workshop where they were divided into small groups to discuss challenges and issues involving the company’s culture and to explore ways to
address them and better communicate with each other. Before having discussions, they were given a special lecture on conflict management and
communication, and shared their own experiences.
CEO Jong-Gyu Won also attended the workshop and stressed the importance of communication by saying, “For any organization, communication
is a conundrum that takes lots of time and effort to solve. There is always
a risk that too many cooks can spoil the broth. But I believe that communication can lead us all in the same direction, and when it does, our move
will gain so much traction.”
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The 36 Korean Re
Seminar Held in Seoul
th

From May 7 to 12, 2017, we hosted the 36th Korean Re Reinsurance Management Seminar (Korean Re Seminar) at the head office in Seoul.

The Korean Re Seminar was launched in 1979 as a platform for information exchange and discussion on key issues in the global insurance industry. Since then, this annual event has been attended by more than 600
professionals from over 250 insurance companies. It is now widely recognized among insurance market participants as one of the most prestigious
reinsurance seminars in Asia.
This year, a total of 21 attendees, mostly mid-level officials of 21 insurers
around the world, showed great interest in what the seminar had to offer.
Among the countries represented were Spain, Brazil, Japan, Taiwan, Malaysia and Uzbekistan.
At the opening ceremony, CEO Jong-Gyu Won said, “Korean Re has made
continuous efforts to provide a platform where insurance experts from around
the world can build friendships and strengthen ties. We hope that this 36-yearold seminar will serve the purpose and encourage participants to have a wide
range of discussions on issues at hand in the reinsurance sector.”

During the seminar, Korean Re employees gave presentations on the company’s underwriting techniques and major developments in the Korean
insurance market, as well as an analysis of large-loss events. Also, field trips
to local industrial sites helped participants gain a better understanding of
underwriting practices that Korean Re had shared at the seminar. Other programs included lectures and discussions on special topics such as alternative
risk transfer (Cat Bond) and earthquake insurance.
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September
Korean Re opened its Labuan branch office on July 1, 2017 following

final approval from the Labuan Financial Services Authority on June 28.
The branch in Labuan will allow Korean Re to effectively tap into the

Cyber Risk Seminar 2017

December
Korean Re organized the Cyber Risk Seminar 2017 on September 6 at the
head office in Seoul. The seminar was held to promote the development

of the domestic cyber risk insurance market amid growing frequency
and severity of cyber incidents, including data breaches. A number of

Malaysian market, which has a large growth potential with considerably

insurance industry officials such as underwriters and claims adjusters

low natural catastrophe risks in comparison to other countries in

attended the seminar where four speakers made presentations on cyber

Southeast Asia. The Labuan branch is to be operated through the staff

risks and related issues.

and resources of our Singapore branch.

An official from Beazley spoke about the cyber insurance market in

Since we set up our first overseas branch in Singapore in 1975, we have

Europe and relevant legislative developments in the region and shared

established a presence in nine major cities around the world, including

information on how to reduce cyber risks. A Korean Re speaker gave a

London, New York, Dubai and Hong Kong. This international network has

presentation on the overview of cyber risks and the status of the cyber

played an important role in helping us expand into overseas markets,

risk insurance market. He also addressed what Korean Re has been

and it will be further broadened as we seek to increase our global

doing to develop comprehensive cyber insurance covers to help local

operations.

businesses and organizations deal with their cyber risks involving first
and third party damage.

24

Green Office Initiative

We expanded the initiative to green our office with plants in July 2017

as our trial experiment for some parts of the office went well last year.
Adding a touch of green to our workplaces generated positive responses
from our employees. Indeed, many studies have shown that having

more greenery in a workspace in the form of indoor plants can benefit
employees and their organization in terms of productivity, creativity
and stress relief. We placed various plants on the top of office partition

walls, and the presence of green plants resulted in a positive change in
the psychosocial working environment. Another benefit of being around

green plants such as schefflera and snake plants is improved air quality
as they create oxygen and absorb carbon dioxide as well as help regulate
humidity.

The green office project is a part of the company’s effort to improve
our workplace conditions and working environment. We are exploring

a number of other ideas to make our office a better place to work in so

that our employees become more productive and creative in performing

their day-to-day duties. We will remain committed to improving our
office environment in ways that can have positive impacts on the health,
wellness and productivity of our employees.

Approval for New Branch
in Dubai

Korean Re received final approval for a new branch in Dubai, the United
Arab Emirates from the Dubai Financial Services Authority (DFSA) on

October 8 2017. Our third branch office, following the Singapore and

Labuan branches, is to officially start operation in January 2018. Located

in the Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC), our DIFC branch in
Dubai will serve as Korean Re’s underwriting base in the Middle East and

North Africa (MENA), a region that has plenty of growth potential with

regard to insurance penetration and economic development. Korean Re
has built solid business relations with many insurers and reinsurers in
the MENA region, and will continue to develop and strengthen business

with them. In the meantime, we will strive to explore new markets and
business opportunities in the region based on the analysis of local needs
and opportunities.

25
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We achieved a strong top-line
growth for 2017, with gross written
premiums increasing by 7.8 percent
to KRW 7,208.1 billion.
Our domestic business continued
to perform robustly with a 6.5
percent growth, and premiums
from our overseas business soared
by 12.7 percent.
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Overview

Overview

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

Property

• Long-term • Motor

• Life • Investment

Kiy-Sung Lee
General Manager

Korean Re reported a substantial increase in underwriting

The growth of our overseas business accelerated to 12.7

defined by massive natural catastrophe losses. Our strict

our international property facultative business. Our global

profit and a combined ratio of 98.4 percent in a year

underwriting policy and well-established relationships

with clients and brokers helped us secure more profitable
business opportunities. Our years of effort to diversify our
business portfolio also showed its value in boosting our

28

underwriting results. On the other hand, we posted weaker

percent in 2017 as we continued to see a strong increase of
property treaty business grew by 2.8 percent on the back

of a solid expansion of our U.S. portfolio. We also recorded
robust growth in most of the other lines, including
engineering, aviation, life and casualty.

robustly with a 6.5 percent growth, and premiums from
our overseas business soared by 12.7 percent.

Premiums from domestic personal lines jumped by

9.5 percent year over year due to the effect of a rise in
primary long-term insurance rates and increased writings
of profitable life business. In particular, our long-term

business grew by 12.6 percent, while the domestic life
business expanded by 7.2 percent.

Our domestic commercial business grew by 2 percent,
and the main drivers of the growth were the expansion
of the mobile phone insurance market and new business

covering satellite and offshore wind power risks. Still, we
had to struggle with a stagnant commercial insurance

market as underwriting conditions remained challenging

for many lines of business. Our premium income from
domestic property lines decreased by 0.4 percent to KRW

532 billion. We also saw our domestic engineering business
shrink modestly to KRW 147.4 billion.

of 41.8 percent in 2017. There were a few significant

loss events during the year, but it did not translate into
catastrophic losses. In terms of growth, the market

previous year. This was mainly due to a soft market trend

made back in 2009.

billion. Our domestic business continued to perform

property insurance market recorded a stable loss ratio

9.2 percent to KRW 1,364 billion in 2017 compared to the

our investment in KDB Life’s private equity fund that was

written premiums increasing by 7.8 percent to KRW 7,208.1

In the absence of large natural disasters in Korea, the

performed poorly, with premium income decreasing by

investment results as we booked impairment losses from

We achieved a strong top-line growth for 2017, with gross

Domestic Business

and rate decreases. By line of business, the fire insurance
market declined by 16.3 percent to KRW 192 billion in

premium income, while the comprehensive insurance

Breakdown of Gross Written Premiums
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Property

Engineering

Marine &
Aviation

Casualty

FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2016
(KRW)
(USD)
(KRW)
(USD)
1,093.6
619.3

573.6

1,057.8

965.1

1,066.5

506.2

533.2

546.5

933.5

590.8

998.8

907.9

503.0

453.9

850.3

YoY
Change
2.5%

4.8%

7.6%

5.9%

Long-term

1,861.0

1,642.3

1,652.4

1,406.7

12.6%

Life

1,204.6

1,063.0

1,091.0

928.8

10.4%

23.4

20.7

23.3

19.8

0.4%

7,208.1

6,360.8

6,684.5

5,690.8

7.8%

Motor

Singapore
Branch

Korean Re
Underwriting
Ltd. (KRUL)

Total

682.7
92.0

602.5
81.2

638.9
89.7

543.9
76.4

6.9%

2.6%

✽ YoY Change is based on figures in KRW.
✽✽ Engineering includes nuclear, agriculture and other specialty lines.
✽✽✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

market was down 8 percent to KRW 1,171.8 billion.

Korean Re also had a challenging year domestically but

managed to perform relatively well in 2017. We reported
a decrease of 0.4 percent to KRW 532 billion in overall

domestic property premiums, but our premium income

from comprehensive insurance increased slightly by 1.0

percent to KRW 384 billion as we continued to develop
new business. We saw our book of fire insurance business

shrink by 3.8 percent to KRW 148 billion due to an
increase in retention by local primary insurers and the
overall market contraction. As we focused on selective

underwriting, our business results for domestic property
business remained fairly stable.

The highly competitive reinsurance business environment

is expected to continue into 2018. In response, we will keep
rebalancing our domestic property business portfolio to
maximize our profit potential. We will also remain focused
on writing profitable accounts based on multi-faceted risk
analysis and selective underwriting.

Gross Written Premiums
: Domestic Business
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Fire

Comprehensive

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

384.0

338.9

380.3

323.8

147.9

531.9

130.5

469.4

153.6

533.9

130.8

454.6
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• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

International Facultative Business

We continued to see a strong growth of our international

property facultative business, with gross written premiums
increasing by 24.7 percent to KRW 81.4 billion in 2017. This
power and energy sector risks.

A breakdown of our premium income by geography shows
that Asia takes up the largest share, or 48.7 percent, of the

the Middle East (14.7 percent). There is no substantial
difference in the overall composition compared to the

prior year, but the portion of the Middle East decreased in
the wake of our portfolio adjustment caused by a minor
change in our underwriting guidelines.

In 2017, as part of our client support initiatives, we
hosted a Technical Engineering Seminar for our key

30

clients in Vietnam and Thailand to provide tailor-made

risk management solutions and share our underwriting

techniques with regard to power and petrochemical
occupancies. We will seek to have more of our key clients
be involved in this engagement by expanding our client
support service to other regions.

For the coming year, ample alternative capital and
strong competition in the global property reinsurance

market are likely to limit the extent of market hardening
following a record year of losses. In the face of intensifying
competition, Korean Re will strive to tap into new

markets, backed by its strong credit ratings, and will focus

particularly on expanding our business in Mainland China
and other emerging markets to ensure sustained growth
and profitability of the company.

• Long-term • Motor

• Life • Investment

Natural catastrophe insured losses worldwide reached

USD 134 billion in 2017 – the second-costliest ever just

Gross Written Premiums
: International Facultative Business
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

International
Facultative
Business

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

81.4

71.8

65.3

55.6

behind the record of USD 137 billion in 2011 1) . The record-

breaking natural catastrophe events included Hurricanes

Harvey, Irma and Maria in the United States and the

Caribbean. These three hurricanes alone cost the global
insurance industry USD 80 billion.

Se-Koan Oh

Consequently, the industry expected general rate increases

General Manager

that could make up for the massive losses. However,

total international property facultative business, followed

by Europe (16.4 percent), the Americas (16.3 percent) and

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

International Treaty Business

was driven by two main factors - an overall increase in line
size per account, and a growth in new business involving
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January 2018 renewals saw only a slowdown in market
softening rather than hardening, as the market capacity

International Facultative Portfolio by Geography
Africa
3.9%
Middle East
14.7%
Americas
16.3%

Europe
16.4%

remained mostly intact and competition in the reinsurance

market was still intensive. Rates have moved up partly in
Asia
48.7%

certain lines and territories affected by the recent losses,
especially in Europe and the United States. A widespread
spike in pricing is not likely in the near future, although

Gross Written Premiums
: International Treaty Business
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

rate softening may be stalled to some extent.

Gross written premiums for our international treaty

b u s i n e s s w e re w o r t h K R W 4 8 0 . 4 b i l l i o n i n 2 0 1 7 ,
representing a 2.8 percent rise from 2016. This increase

came amid a delay in issuance of some treaty statements
of accounts in China due to Chinese tax reforms and a
reduction in our share on major Chinese treaties. A strong

growth of our U.S. portfolio drove the overall increase of
our book of international treaty business. East Asia’s share

East Asia

Middle East
& Africa

Europe

Americas

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)
190.4

100.8
97.7

91.5

480.4

FY 2017
(USD)
168.0
89.0

86.2

80.7

423.9

FY 2016
(KRW)
207.3
93.7

93.6

72.7

467.3

FY 2016
(USD)
176.5
79.8

79.7

61.9

397.8

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

in our international treaty portfolio fell by 4 percentage

points to 40 percent, but it still accounted for the largest
portion, followed by the Middle East and Africa, including

Turkey and Israel, at 21 percent and Europe at 20 percent.

The Americas took up 19 percent, up 3 percentage points

International Treaty Portfolio by Geography

from a year earlier as we increased our U.S. book of

business for portfolio diversification. Our annual premium
income from the Americas rose by 26 percent in 2017.

This year, we will continue to implement a strategy to

Americas
19%

East Asia
40%

rebalance our global business portfolio. We will remain
conservative in writing new proportional treaty businesses
in catastrophe-prone regions, while endeavoring to

expand business in Europe and the Americas in order to

geographically diversify our international treaty portfolio.
We will also secure our bargaining power by actively
providing lead quotes for accounts in our target markets.

As part of our effort to remain successfully profitable in
the current harsh market conditions, we will write more of
non-proportional treaties in selective regions.

1) Weather,

Climate & Catastrophe Insight 2017 Annual Report, Aon Benfield

Europe
20%

Middle East & Africa
21%
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Engineering

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

General Manager

• Long-term • Motor

2017 was yet another challenging year for the engineering

London and countries like China and those in Southeast

Our premium income from agriculture and other specialty

industry remained in recession. The market continued to

recovered by 2.9 percent compared to a record low level

to KRW 345.8 billion in 2017, demonstrating Korean Re’s

decline, with premium income falling by 6.2 percent to
KRW 267.0 billion in 2017 compared to the previous year.
This downward trend, combined with market softening,

adversely affected our domestic engineering business,

32

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

Agriculture
and Other
Specialty Lines

Byoung-Ki So

insurance market in Korea as the domestic construction

reducing our gross written premiums to KRW 147.4 billion
in 2017 compared to KRW 153.2 billion in 2016.

Asia. In 2017, Korea’s international construction orders

in 2016, and the construction industry expects the trend

of recovery to continue into 2018 amid a steady rise
in international oil prices. Supported by this favorable

prospect, we will strive to achieve our growth target this

year by strengthening our current business relationships
with major clients and expanding into new markets.

ratio of 44 percent, in the absence of natural catastrophes

and large-loss events. Likewise, our domestic engineering

engineering insurance market will contract further as the
lack of funding continues to become a major downside

factor. The Korean government cut its 2018 budget for
infrastructure construction by 14.2 percent to KRW 19

trillion, and its infrastructure spending is expected to keep
shrinking by 2019. In response, we will make our utmost

efforts to drive growth by actively exploring new business
opportunities. Developing customized products for target

clients will be an important task for us as we seek to
further solidify our leadership position in the market.

international agricultural insurance business grow robustly,
contributing to the company’s overseas business growth.

The domestic crop insurance market declined by 2 percent

year over year to KRW 316.2 billion in total premium income
hand, the livestock and natural perils insurance markets

Gross Written Premiums
: Engineering
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Domestic

Overseas

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

121.6

107.3

112.5

147.4

269.0

130.1

237.4

153.2

265.7

FY 2016
(USD)
130.4
95.8

226.2

grew in size as there was an increase in demand in the wake

of major natural catastrophe events like heat waves and
earthquakes. Another driver of growth was the combined

efforts by the government and the insurance industry to
increase the penetration rates of livestock and natural perils
insurance across society.

In terms of market loss experiences by line of business, crop

insurance recorded a loss ratio of 94 percent due to large
losses from hail. The loss ratio of livestock insurance further

aggravated to 89 percent as the livestock industry suffered

from more heatwaves in the summer of 2017 following the

damage from hot weather in 2016. Natural peril insurance
resulted in a loss ratio of 20 percent due to the absence of
major natural disasters such as typhoons.

On the international front, we achieved a strong growth

Korean Re is leading the local reinsurance market for

in premiums involving Korean contractors’ overseas

p ro v i d i n g l o ca l i n s u re r s w i t h a cce s s to o v e r s ea s

in engineering insurance premiums despite a decrease

construction projects and overall rate softening in the

global engineering insurance market. Our gross written

premiums from the overseas engineering business rose

by 12.1 percent, backed by our robust business growth in

• Life • Investment

Gross Written Premiums
: Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

growing strength in specialty lines. In particular, we saw our

following favorable loss experiences since 2013. On the other

business delivered solid underwriting results.

Going forward, it looks inevitable that the domestic

lines increased by more than 7 percent year over year

due to a continuous decrease in original premium rates

Meanwhile, the domestic engineering insurance market
continued to have favorable loss experiences, with a loss
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crop, livestock and natural perils businesses by exclusively

reinsurance capacity. We have been successfully playing
this role as a reliable provider of reinsurance capacity,
contributing to market development for governmentsponsored insurance plans.

Domestic Crop

Livestock

FY 2017
(KRW)
163.9
57.6

FY 2017
(USD)
144.6
50.8

Natural Perils

26.2

23.1

Overseas
Agricultural

95.2

84.0

Mobile Phone

Total

2.8

345.8

2.5

305.2

FY 2016
(KRW)
180.1
49.0

19.7

19.6

52.3

320.7

FY 2016
(USD)
153.3
41.7

16.8

16.7

44.5

273.0

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
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Overview

Nuclear

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

• Long-term • Motor

Marine
and Aviation

• Life • Investment

Woo-Sik Jung
General Manager

The Korea Atomic Energy Insurance Pool (KAEIP), which

of nuclear reactors. Globally, however, the nuclear

Our marine and aviation business performed well in 2017 with

business, will be another important focus of our operation.

association of non-life insurance and reinsurance

softening amid fierce competition among pools, mutual

This was a remarkable achievement given the persistently

and line of business should be an important priority for us to

insurance market players have been experiencing market

is managed by Korean Re, is a voluntary, unincorporated

associations and captives, leading to a reduction in market

companies. In 2017, the KAEIP maintained stable

volume. Against this backdrop, the KAEIP will continue to

performance by writing KRW 31.9 billion in domestic direct

strengthen its domestic business to ensure stable growth

premiums. Internationally, its reinsurance premium income
increased by 10 percent to KRW 18.7 billion, pushing up its

34

growth in its overseas premium income arose from new

changes are in progress with regard to the nuclear liability

effect from a turmoil in the shipping industry and a plunge in

allow us to further grow our nuclear book of business
going forward.

In Korea, there are a total of 25 nuclear power plants
(NPPs), with 24 NPPs in operation and one being put into

permanent shutdown (Kori Unit 1, shutdown in June 2017).

An additional five units are currently under construction.

operational, and 56 reactors are under construction.
are China (18 units), India (6 units) and Russia (5 units).

Domestic Direct

The domestic nuclear insurance market has been growing

Overseas Inward

Total

in size on the back of a steady increase in the number

Regional Distribution of
Nuclear Power Plants
In Operation
Under Construction

112

Europe

- Western

2

0

Africa

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

18.7

16.5

17.1

14.6

31.9

50.6

28.2

44.7

32.2

27.4

49.3

42.0

111

12

Europe

- Central and
Eastern

28

13

Asia

- Middle East
and South

26
Asia

- Far East

market conditions, with gross written premiums decreasing by

contribution to the growth. We saw our aviation premium
income soar by 47.1 percent year over year to KRW 111.8

billion on the back of an increase in our international aviation

business. Domestically, we added new satellite business to our

book, helping to boost domestic aviation premium income in
the face of a softening market.

Although there are some signs of the marine insurance
orders are bouncing back, the outlook for 2018 does not look
promising, given the intensifying competition in the global

marine insurance market and the restructuring of the domestic

2

shipping and shipbuilding sectors.

America

- Northern

In these difficult market conditions, our focus will remain on
7

maintaining strict underwriting discipline to achieve profitable
1

America
- Latin

(Source: Power Reactor Information System (PRIS), International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), as of April 8, 2018)

business, however, suffered some setbacks due to softening

market improving as marine shipments and shipbuilding

118

72
2

FY 2017
(KRW)

We believe the diversification of our portfolio by geography
ensure sustained growth of our business.

Gross Written Premiums
: Marine and Aviation
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

global shipbuilding order book in 2016. Our cargo insurance

The aviation insurance segment made a particularly strong
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Among the countries where such construction is underway

in 2017, up 0.8 percent from a year earlier. This reflected a base

0.1 percent to KRW 86.4 billion.

Gross Written Premiums
: KAEIP

Worldwide, a total of 450 reactors are commercially

shipping and shipbuilding industries.

Our hull and energy premiums amounted to KRW 369.3 billion

and compensation regime. We believe this strategy will

business in China and the UAE.

challenging market conditions including a downturn in the

while bolstering marketing efforts in target markets where

new nuclear reactors are under construction or legislative

total premium income to KRW 50.6 billion for the year. The

premium income growing by 7.6 percent to KRW 574 billion.

growth. We will continue to expand our international business

by increasing our participation in profitable treaty programs
in new markets. The development of new business, such

as builder’s risk for naval vessels, fine arts and aerospace

Hull

Cargo

Aviation

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

86.4

76.2

86.5

73.6

369.3

118.0

573.6

325.9

104.1

506.2

366.6
80.2

533.2

312.1
68.3

453.9

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
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Casualty

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

Long-term

• Long-term • Motor

Phil-Won Jeong

The 2018 outlook for the casualty reinsurance market in

The primary long-term insurance market in Korea grew by

growth of personal accident and liability lines of business.

insurers look set to maintain their aggressive retention

policies led the growth of the market in spite of a slowdown in

percent compared to the previous year. Primary insurers
continued to retain more risks with the support of their

growing capacity. In particular, favorable business results

36

General Manager

The domestic casualty insurance market has steadily
In 2017, the market value rose by approximately 4

in 2017 enabled them to become more confident in

risk taking. Price competition in the market continued

to intensify in some lines of business where loss ratios
remained at low levels.

Although these primary market conditions inevitably

presented challenges to the reinsurance industry, Korean
Re managed to outperform the market. Our premium

Korea is hardly different from the prior year as primary

strategies. Despite such an unfavorable business condition,
we will continue to focus on improving underwriting

business in overseas markets. We also focused on close

cooperation in product development with our business

expand our premium volume in the local market. Globally,

long-term business. The combined ratio for long-term business

we will seek to broaden our business portfolio that is

currently weighted toward Asia by further increasing

our business in Europe and North America. In doing so,

we will identify target risks and markets and maintain
a conservative underwriting approach so as to achieve
profitable growth.

In almost every line, our casualty business showed growth

within the range of 5 to 25 percent in 2017, although
premium income from personal accident business

decreased by 2 percent in 2017 as we reduced our
portfolio in areas where profitability deteriorated. The

overseas business still accounted for a small portion of our

total casualty book of business, but the pace of growth
was quite noticeable at 21 percent in 2017. Liability lines
of business made up the largest part of the total casualty
premiums at 28 percent, followed by special risks at 26
percent and personal accident at 24 percent.

12.6 percent to KRW 1,861 billion in premium income from
improved slightly to 98.9 percent in 2017 as we strived to build

a profitable long-term business portfolio by supporting the
development of new products and actively underwriting longterm property business.

In 2018, we expect the market to see a modest but stable

growth in terms of premium income. The growth of the

personal accident and disease insurance sectors is forecast
to weaken as a premium rate increase for medical expense

Gross Written Premiums
: Casualty
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Liability

Workers’
Compensation

Personal Accident

Surety & Credit

Special Risks &
Other

Overseas Inward
Business

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)
284.6
25.9

FY 2017
(USD)
251.2
22.9

FY 2016
(KRW)
269.6
23.9

FY 2016
(USD)
229.5
20.4

259.1

228.6

265.1

225.7

290.4

256.3

266.5

226.9

96.5

85.2

79.7

67.9

101.3

1,057.8

89.4

933.5

93.9

998.8

80.0

850.3

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

Gross Written Premiums
: Long-term
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

sales growth of disease insurance and savings products.

In 2017, Korean Re reported a solid year-on-year growth of

swift responses to changing coverage needs in order to

partners to respond swiftly to changes in regulations and
market needs.

2.8 percent in 2017. Personal accident and driver’s insurance

profitability through portfolio adjustments and to make

income from casualty lines of business increased by

6 percent as we constantly endeavored to write more

• Life • Investment

Jun-Dong Kim

General Manager

increased in size over the recent years thanks to solid
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insurance is slowing down. Marketing drives for driver’s

insurance and long-term property insurance will likely lead the
overall growth of the market.

Korean Re will remain dedicated to providing stable

reinsurance capacity in order to support the development of
the long-term insurance market in line with customer demand.
We will seek to explore ideas for new insurance products by

analyzing domestic and global product development trends.
Another focus will be placed on providing our clients with

medical underwriting services and supporting the expansion

of the long-term property insurance market based on our
technical assistance and reinsurance programs. With these
efforts, we will endeavor to achieve a stable premium income
growth and ultimately contribute to improving our business
portfolio.

Long-term

FY 2017
(KRW)
1,861.0

FY 2017
(USD)
1,642.3

FY 2016
(KRW)
1,652.4

FY 2016
(USD)
1,406.7
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Overview

Motor

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

Life

• Long-term • Motor

• Life • Investment

Hang-Yoon Shin
General Manager

In 2017, the motor insurance market in Korea recorded a

We aim to achieve a 5.4 percent growth, or KRW 719.4

2017 was a year of remarkable growth for our life business as

Developing such new products has become increasingly

This robust growth was supported by the expansion of the

in 2018. We will keep providing reinsurance programs that

to KRW 1,205 billion. In the domestic market, major growth

downturn. In 2017, life insurance premium income in Korea

year-on-year growth of 2.8 percent in premium income.

personal injury protection market and a growing number
of registered vehicles. Meanwhile, the loss ratio fell by

1.3 percentage points year on year to 80.9 percent. The
improved efficiency in claims handling and a decrease in

38

accident occurrence rate were both the key factors behind

billion in gross written premiums from our motor business
meet our clients’ needs and demand. Furthermore, we will
make our best efforts to grasp new business opportunities,
and in doing so we seek to achieve mutual growth with
our partners.

the reduction in the loss ratio.

Our motor reinsurance business generated KRW 682.7

billion in gross written premiums in 2017, up 7.4 percent
from the previous year. We also delivered better business

results with a loss ratio of 77.1 percent, down 5.2
percentage points.

In the domestic market, we continued to support our

clients with a newly established reinsurance program
covering high risks in addition to the existing treaties, both

gross written premiums soared by 10.4 percent year over year
drivers were the expansion of the health insurance business

and the development of new products including simplified
issue insurance, which was developed in collaboration with
primary insurers.

We also successfully kept expanding our overseas portfolio by

underwriting new business in Africa. As a result, our overseas
life premium volume jumped by 19.8 percent. We continued
to generate stable premium income in our existing markets -

Gross Written Premiums
: Motor
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Motor

FY 2017
(KRW)
682.7

FY 2017
(USD)
602.5

FY 2016
(KRW)
638.9

FY 2016
(USD)
543.9

North America and Asia, especially China.

Our life business delivered strong technical results as well, with

net underwriting profit increasing by KRW 3 billion to KRW 47.3
billion. This improvement in profitability was attributable to
our portfolio rebalancing and disciplined underwriting.

proportional and non-proportional. We also strengthened

In the Korean life reinsurance market, we maintained a solid

mutual associations by offering various reinsurance

increase from 23.9 percent in 2010. The nation’s total life

our business relationships with local cooperatives and

solutions. On the international front, we strived to diversify
our business portfolio by expanding into new markets,
particularly in the Middle East and Europe.

In 2018, the domestic motor insurance market is expected

reinsurance premiums amounted to KRW 1,880 billion in 2017,

up KRW 200 billion from 2016, while Korean Re’s life premium
income increased by KRW 58 billion to KRW 869.7 billion over
the same period.

Throughout 2017, Korean Re continued to increase our

and premium rate adjustment reflecting a rise in repair

respond to a constantly evolving life insurance business

costs. However, the growth of the Internet-based insurance

market and fierce competition may negatively affect the
premium rates per vehicle.

declined by 4.9 percent amid a slowdown in the growth

of protection policies and retirement pension plans. The

market is expected to recover slightly in 2018, but the extent
of growth is likely to be only limited. These weak market
conditions inevitably call for breakthroughs in the form of

product redesigning or innovation. And Korean Re, as a reliable
provider of reinsurance capacity, plays an essential role in the
development of new products in cooperation with primary
insurers.

Going forward, we will reinforce our status as a leader in the

Korean life reinsurance market by improving the quality of

our reinsurance services including educational programs and
technical assistance. In the global markets, we will strive to
find new growth engines so that we should build a stronger
overseas life business portfolio.

market share of 43.1 percent in 2017, representing a sharp

to grow by 3.2 percent to KRW 17.7 trillion in premium

income, led by an increasing number of high-valued cars,

important for domestic life insurers to deal with a market

engagement with primary insurers in order to effectively

environment. For example, we stepped up our initiatives to
co-develop new life products such as health insurance for the

elderly (silver insurance), lapse-supported whole life insurance
and cash-benefit medical insurance.

Gross Written Premiums
: Life
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Life

FY 2017
(KRW)

1,204.6

FY 2017
(USD)

1,063.0

FY 2016
(KRW)
1091.0

FY 2016
(USD)
928.8

39

Financial Highlights

Message from the CEO

Board of Management

Summary of 2017

Inside Korean Re

Review of Operations

CSR

Market Overview

Financial Review

Corporate Information

◀ HOME ▶

Review of Operations

Korean Re Annual Report 2017

Overview

Investment

• Property • Engineering

• Agriculture and Other Specialty Lines • Nuclear

• Marine and Aviation • Casualty

• Long-term • Motor

• Life • Investment

Han-Seung Lee
General Manager

In 2017, the Korean economy grew at a pace of above

3 percent for the first time in three years as domestic
d e m a n d re b o u n d e d a m i d re d u ce d u n ce r ta i n t i e s

surrounding the global economy. Along with the economic

growth, consumer prices increased by 1.9 percent, the
fastest rise in five years mostly due to upward pressure on
the supply side including higher oil prices.

40

The Bank of Korea raised its key interest rate to 1.5 percent

Our invested assets increased by 5.9 percent to KRW

5,626.3 billion as of year-end thanks to a growth in both

Investment Portfolio
Others
3.4%

Alternative
Investments
(Including Loans)
16.4%

investment and underwriting income. Fixed income
securities including government bonds and others with
Bonds
36.2%

jump of 50 bps. The Korea Composite Stock Price Index or
KOSPI gained year on year by 21.8 percent as of the end of

the year thanks to increased corporate profits and capital
inflows from foreign investors.

Against this background, we focused on strengthening

the profitability of our invested assets, while maintaining
a conservative approach to investing, one of our key
investment principles.

Investment Income*
Yield (%)

Yield* (%)

Foreign
Investments
28.7%

results and portfolio diversification. Foreign investments,
Stocks
1.5%

Short-term Funds
13.8%

which account for 28.7 percent of the total invested
assets, consist mostly of Korean Papers and bonds with

global credit ratings of A- or higher. The majority of our
alternative investments (including loans), which make up

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

26.2

23.1

184.6

157.2

5,626.3

5,200.9

132.9

117.3

2.5

2.5

0.5

0.5

5,314.0
155.5
3.6

3.1

4,354.7
132.4
3.6

3.1

* Gains and/or losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance
liabilities have been excluded.

2) Investment results in this investment section are based on the
Separate Financial Statements of Korean Re, reflecting investment
operation at the head office only.

(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Bonds

Stocks

Short-term Funds

Foreign
Investments

Alternative
Investments
(Including Loans)

Others

Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

81.6

75.4

87.8

2,037.5
777.9

1,883.4
719.1

1,971.7

1,181.9

FY 2016
(USD)
1,615.8
72.0

968.5

1,617.2

1,494.9

1,482.6

1,215.0

923.6

853.8

400.4

328.1

188.5

5,626.3

174.2

5,200.9

189.6

5,314.0

155.4

4,354.7

figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
✽ Individual


16.4 percent of the total invested assets, involve senior
secured real estate loans and acquisition finance.

We generated KRW 132.9 billion in investment income for

Investment Income
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

the year, excluding foreign exchange gains/losses. Over 41

percent of the investment income came from our bond
holdings, which amounted to KRW 54.8 billion. Income
percent of the total investment income.

(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Investment Income

assets.

from foreign investments was KRW 50.8 billion or 38.2

Investment Results 2)

Invested Assets

portfolio, taking up 36.2 percent of the total invested

investments (including loans) to boost our investment

months on the back of improved economic indicators.
to 2.135 percent at year-end, representing a year-on-year

high credit ratings continued to dominate our investment

We increased portions of foreign and alternative

last November for the first time in six years and five
The yield on three-year Korea treasury bonds also went up

Invested Assets

In 2018 we expect to see a continued recovery of the global

economy, but there are also uncertainties surrounding the
global investment environment such as interest rate hikes

by the U.S. Federal Reserve and other major central banks.
However, we will continue to maintain our investment

strategy that focuses on the stability of investment
operations. We will also keep increasing our holdings

of foreign investments and alternative investments to
generate stable investment returns in the long run.

Bonds

Stocks

Short-term Funds

Foreign
Investments

Foreign
Investments*

Alternative
Investments
(Including Loans)

Others

Total

Total*

FY 2017
(KRW)
54.8
6.0

12.7

FY 2017
(USD)
48.4
5.3

11.2

FY 2016
(KRW)
74.4
-5.6

16.7

FY 2016
(USD)
63.3
-4.8

14.2

-55.9

-49.3

70.0

59.6

50.8

44.8

40.9

34.8

7.4

6.5

25.7

21.9

1.2

26.2

132.9

1.1

23.1

117.3

3.4

184.6

155.5

2.9

157.2

132.4

* Gains and/or losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance
liabilities have been excluded.
figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
✽ Individual
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Belief in Taking Action
We have long been committed to doing good things for society and fulfilling
our corporate social responsibility.

In 2017, we continued to implement our regular employee

volunteer programs, which are designed to support
underserved people and communities.

Korean Re employees participate in a home repair and
neighborhood revitalization project for a small town called

Jeogok Village in Cheongju. The project aims to help people
with poor housing conditions renew their homes and

neighborhoods. Korean Re regularly supports the project

in cooperation with Habitat for Humanity Korea. We first

engaged in the neighborhood revitalization project in 2016
to lend a helping hand in home repairs and improvements
for the village where there were many decrepit houses aged
30 years or older.

In 2017, four groups of Korean Re employees volunteered

to take part in the project for two days each over the course
of two months, from September to October. Under the

direction of Habitat staff, they supported the repair works of
old houses, such as replacing ceiling panels and wallpaper
and painting exterior walls.

From September to December, we organized five rounds

of community food-sharing events at a local Red Cross
volunteer center. Groups of Korean Re employees cooked
and baked, and the dishes that they made were packed

and then delivered to those in need, including senior
citizens living alone and low-income families.

On December 5, CEO Jong-Gyu Won and a group of

Korean Re employees visited Ihwa-dong, an inner city
neighborhood of the Korean Re head office of the Jongno

District in Seoul and donated rice and food products to

financially difficult households in the community. Some
of the packages were personally delivered door to door by

Korean Re volunteers. We also donated school supplies
to children from low-income families. This annual giving
initiative has continued for the past 14 years since 2004

when Korean Re agreed to become a regular sponsor of the

neighborhood. Through the donation program, we provide
support to the less privileged in the area once a year.

KRW

1,059 million
176

Contribution Amount

2,206

Number of Volunteering Employees

341
Hours

Number of Total Employees
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Since 2014, Korean Re has implemented an international

in enormous economic losses not only to the country but

rehabilitation of communities devastated by natural

Losses from floods or other natural disasters can have a

co r p o rate v o l u n te e r i n g p r o g ra m to s u p p o r t t h e

disasters. This program is designed particularly for our
new employees to give them the opportunity to have fully
immersive experiences of volunteering for disaster relief

activities. It helps them become more motivated, engaged
and inspired as they start a new career at Korean Re.

In 2017, we sent a group of volunteers to Thailand to help

also to a large part of the global economy and industries.

devastating impact on individuals and businesses, and the

(re)insurance industry helps them get back on their feet
in the aftermath of a disaster. The first-hand experiences
of being a part of the disaster relief effort allow our young

employees to learn how essential function reinsurance can
perform on communities as part of a social safety net.

rebuild a typhoon-hit community. Comprised of 19 Korean

Re employees, including new hires and five officials of
Habitat for Humanity Korea, the volunteer team visited

Ayutthaya, Thailand on February 12. Over a six-day period,
they participated in a house-building project for four local
families in Tha Din Daeng Village. Some of the activities

included digging holes for septic tanks, mixing concrete
and laying bricks for internal and external walls.

The small village where our volunteers gave a helping hand

had also suffered tremendous damage from the mega-

44
Art and culture is another important area that we focus

Their activities, however, largely depended on corporate

initiatives.

the fate of Wing in the balance, they tried hard to raise

on when we pursue our corporate social responsibility
On March 30, Korean Re entered into a sponsorship

agreement with the Miral Welfare Foundation and
committed KRW 100 million to a cello ensemble named

Wing. Under the sponsorship, the funds committed by the
company would be used to pay for lessons and instrument
repairs, and to organize concerts over a one-year period.

sponsorship that, unfortunately, ended in late 2016. With

funds on social networking sites to keep the ensemble
alive, but individual donations were not enough to finance
their cause. This sad news was caught by CEO Jong-Gyu

Won of Korean Re. At his behest, the company reviewed
the need for sponsorship and finally decided to become a
new sponsor of Wing.

Wing was created by the Foundation in 2011 with the aim

At the signing ceremony, CEO Won said, “The (re)

disabilities communicate with the world through music, as

As a reinsurer, we have a social responsibility for paying

of helping children and teenagers with developmental
they could easily face isolation from society. The ensemble
consists of 27 autistic or intellectually handicapped
children.

Over the past four years, these young musicians have given
hope to many people through annual concerts and non-

regular performances across the country, and received

awards at several competitions including a grand prize

from the Korea Music Concours for Disabled Students in

2016. They were even invited to the U.N. Headquarters to
perform a rendition.

insurance industry was born out of a spirit of mutual aid.

attention to the happiness and safety of our neighbors.
People with developmental disabilities deserve care and
attention from society so that they will not be alienated.”
He went on to say, “These students have created a melody

that really moved my heart. I hope that their beautiful
melody keeps ringing out around the world.”

flood that swept across the country back in 2011, resulting
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Korean Economy

Market
Overview
FY2017
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2017 in Review

GDP

Korea’s economic growth for 2017 beat earlier forecasts with improving exports and investment

activities. According to the Bank of Korea, the nation’s real gross domestic product (GDP) grew
by 3.1 percent in 2017. This was well above the earlier projections of the mid-two percent

range. The domestic economy had begun to slow from 2015 until the first half of 2017, with

GDP growth hovering around the two percent level. However, improvements in exports and
consumer confidence following the recovery of the world economy boosted local economic
output in the second half of 2017.

GDP Growth Trends
Korea

World

(Unit: %)

6.5

5.2

3.9
3.1

3.7

Korean Economy

2.9

Korean Insurance Market
2017 in Review

Prospects for 2018

3.3
3.3

2.3

2017 in Review

Prospects for 2018

3.3

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

3.4

3.2

2.8

2.9

2015

2016

3.7

3.8

3.1

3.0

2017

2018(E)

(Source: Bank of Korea)

Consumer Spending

The nation’s consumer spending grew by 2.6 percent in 2017 compared to 2.5 percent in 2016.

Despite the government’s efforts to enhance consumer confidence, political uncertainties
at home were mainly to blame for the dampening of consumer spending on services and
overseas consumption.

Equipment Investment

In 2017, equipment investment soared, recording a year-over-year growth of 14.6 percent

after a sharp dip in the previous year. The improvement is due to expanding IT investment.
In particular, there was a robust increase in investment spending on semi-conductor
manufacturing equipment on the back of strong demand in the global semi-conductor industry.

Construction Investment

Investment in construction grew by 7.6 percent year over year, representing a weakening trend

compared to the double-digit growth rate recorded a year earlier. It showed signs of slowing
down in the second quarter and eventually turned negative at the end of the year, recording
- 3.8 percent in the fourth quarter. A decrease in both civil engineering works and apartment
construction triggered the downturn toward the end of the year.
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Employment

Roughly 320,000 new jobs were created in 2017 – a slight improvement compared to the

previous year. The main driving force was the government’s employment policy and an
improving construction sector. The number of new employees in the manufacturing sector

declined by 18,000, affected by corporate restructuring in the shipbuilding industry. Despite the
drop in the number of incoming tourists in Korea, the service sector continued to add new jobs.

Health, social welfare and public administration recruits were particularly strong due to the
government’s job creation policy.

Inflation

The annualized inflation rate rose to 1.9 percent in 2017 from 1.0 percent in 2016. Due to severe

weather and avian influenza, the prices of agricultural, livestock and agro-fishery products
increased substantially. Industrial goods prices turned to an upward trend following rises in

international oil prices. On the other hand, an uptrend in service prices slowed compared to the
previous year, with rent and public service prices slowing down.

Current Account Balance

In 2017, Korea’s current account surplus dropped to USD 78.5 billion from close to USD 100

billion in 2016. The figure of the merchandise account surplus remained strong, while the
service sector continued to worsen, bringing the total current account surplus down to about

80% of what it stood in the previous year. The merchandise account surplus exceeded USD

48

120 billion thanks to expanding exports and global demand. On the other hand, service sector

deficits reached USD 34.5 billion due to a sharp reduction in the number of Chinese tourists

Prospects
for 2018

GDP

The Korean economy is on track to solid recovery, with its GDP growth forecast at around 3.0
percent for 2018. The key drivers will be improving consumer spending and robust merchandise

exports. Consumer spending is likely to continue moderate growth backed by the government’s
efforts to boost private consumption, while a trend of recovery in major economies should help

boost the nation’s exports. There are some downside factors, however, such as a slowdown in domestic construction investment and a substantial contraction in equipment investment.

Consumer Spending

Consumer spending is expected to rise by 2.7 percent, continuing a growing trend backed by

the government’s stimulus measures and weakening savings demand. Moreover, a significant
improvement in the inter-Korean relationship could further boost consumer spending. Yet the

increasing burden of household debt payment and a delayed improvement in job market conditions could limit any pick-up in consumer confidence.

Equipment Investment

Equipment investment growth is projected to slow down to 2.9 percent in 2018 following a sharp
turnaround in the previous year. The IT sector, which led a 14.6% jump in 2017, is the main factor
of the drastic downturn in overall equipment investment, and this slowdown trend is likely to con-

tinue into the coming year. However, non-IT sectors will show modest growth in their investment

spending, including some new investments in new and eco-friendly technologies by the communications, motor, and petrochemical sectors.

visiting Korea and restructuring in the shipping industry.

Construction Investment

Interest Rates

over now. The nation’s construction investment is expected to decline by 0.2 percent in 2018. In

The average three-year treasury yield in 2017 stood at 1.8 percent, up modestly compared to the

previous year. The Bank of Korea (BOK) raised on November 30 its benchmark interest rate for
the first time in more than six years, bringing an end to a period of record-low borrowing costs.

The rate was raised to 1.5 percent from an all-time low of 1.25 percent as the nation’s economic
conditions convinced the central bank to begin normalizing its monetary policy.

Foreign Exchange Rate

The Korean won’s weakening trend against the U.S. dollar was stalled in 2017, with the yearly

average exchange rate slightly down to KRW 1,141 per U.S. dollar. At the beginning of the year,
the won remained weak, as it was affected by growing concerns over North Korea-related

political uncertainties and U.S. protectionary measures. As the year progressed, however, the
won started to gain strength against the U.S. dollar, backed by reduced external uncertainties
involving North Korea and an improving Korean economy. The value of the Korean won
against the dollar increased by 12.8 percent throughout the year.

The strong pace of expansion in construction investment in the past several years seems to be
particular, the housing sector is slowing down rapidly as a large number of housing starts between
2015 and 2016 are now turning into completions. The non-housing sector is also experiencing a

decrease in construction starts, and a cut in government spending on infrastructure is expected to
render civil engineering works sluggish.

Employment

Around 260,000 new jobs are projected to be created in 2018, down from 320,000 in the previous

year. In spite of a slumping construction sector, the unemployment rate is expected to remain at 3.8
percent, while the employment rate is projected at 61 percent. With improving exports, employ-

ment in the manufacturing industry will likely improve, but only at a gentle pace due to sluggish
production in some sectors. In the service sector, new jobs will be added by the government’s
policy to spur job creation and a recovery in the number of incoming tourists.

Inflation

The nation’s consumer price inflation is forecast to remain at 1.6 percent in 2018, down from 1.9
percent in 2017. The core inflation rate, which strips out volatile food and energy prices, is project-

ed at 1.6 percent. Agricultural prices are likely to move upward, recovering from a large drop in the
prior year. Also, public utility prices are expected to show a moderate increase due to the oil prices

that have recently risen, but the extent of the increase will be limited due to the government’s pol-

icy to stabilize prices. Still, it is possible that an increase in shale oil production may put a brake

on the rising international oil prices. A slowdown in rent increases amid the growing supply of
new apartments could also counterbalance some of the inflationary pressure.
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Current Account Balance

Korea’s current account surplus is anticipated to decrease to USD 70.5 billion in 2018, compared
to USD 78.5 billion in 2017. Global economic recovery will expand the nation’s exports, leading to
an overall positive balance in the merchandise account. Also, exports in the service sector will re-

bound following a sharp decline in 2017 mainly due to an improving travel sector, contributing to
reducing the nation’s service account deficit.

Interest Rates

In 2018, the average three-year government bond rate is expected to increase marginally to 2.1
percent. As is widely expected in the market, the nation’s benchmark interest rate will likely be
raised over the course of the year. A tightening monetary policy by the U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed)
may also push up market interest rates in Korea, but the rise will be only limited unless local economic conditions improve drastically.

Foreign Exchange Rate

The average KRW/USD exchange rate is projected at KRW 1,150 in 2018, slightly up from KRW 1,141

in 2017. The U.S. dollar is expected to gain some strength due to the government’s economic
stimulus programs and the monetary policy normalization by the Fed throughout the year. However, the upward pressure on the exchange rate may be limited as a potential boost for the dollar
will be mostly outweighed by other central banks’ move toward monetary policy tightening. Furthermore, the recovery trend of the global economy could curb demand for U.S. assets, leading

50

to the dollar’s weakness. Meanwhile, reduced geopolitical tensions involving North Korea have
significantly decreased the volatility in the foreign exchange market.

Equipment Investment

2016

2017

2.8

3.1

-2.3

14.6

3.7

3.7

2.5

Construction Investment

10.7

Current Account Surplus(USD billion)

98.7

4.5

Unemployment Rate
Exports

Imports

Consumer Price Inflation

Three-year Treasury Yield

USD/KRW Exchange Rate (Won)

(Sources: Bank of Korea, Korea Institute of Finance)

The Korean insurance market continued to slow down in 2017, declining by 1.9 percent compared

to the previous year, amid improving but still weak macroeconomic conditions. The life insurance
market contracted, while the non-life insurance market grew modestly. A decrease in savings

insurance sales following tax benefit reduction was one of the key downside factors. Other challenges facing Korean insurers included low interest rates, the upcoming implementation of IFRS17
and a new RBC regime called K-ICS and a possible change in sales commission structure.

The volume of new business fell as the market reached the maturity stage. Increasing household

debt also discouraged consumers from buying insurance or led to an increase in the insurance
surrender ratio. Despite these challenges, insurers reported a significant improvement in bot-

tom-line growth as their loss ratios declined in the wake of premium rate increases for motor insurance and medical expense insurance.

Premium Income
(Unit: KRW trillion)

Life Insurers
Total

(Unit: %)

Consumer Spending

2017 in Review

Non-Life Insurers

Key Economic indicators

Real GDP

Korean Insurance Market

2.1

1.0

1.4

1,161

2.6

7.6

First
Half
3.0

3.1

5.0

2018 (E)
Second
Half

Annual

2.3

2.7

2.9

0.9

3.0

2.9

1.6

-1.8

-0.2

78.5

28.0

42.5

70.5

7.4

2.9

3.7

3.3

3.8

1.9

1.8

1,141

4.1

2.8

1.4

2.0

1,153

3.4

4.3

1.7

2.2

1,146

3.8

3.6

1.6

2.1

1,150

FY 2017
113.9
86.5

200.4

(Sources: General Insurance Association of Korea, Korea Life Insurance Association)

FY 2016
119.8
84.5

204.3

Change (%)
-4.9
2.4

-1.9

Insurers in Korea reported KRW 200.4 trillion in premium income for 2017, down 1.9 percent from

a year earlier. The contraction was driven by a decrease in life insurance premium volume amid
the ongoing trend of falling sales of savings life insurance and retirement annuity plans. Life insurance premiums diminished by 4.9 percent to KRW 113.9 trillion year over year, with savings insurance premiums down 12.3 percent. Life insurers also reported a drop in their premium income
from retirement annuities by 4.5 percent.

There was a slowdown in the growth of life insurers’ premium income from protection policies.
Compared to a 7.1 percent growth in 2016, premiums for protection life insurance increased by 3.1

percent to KRW 40.6 trillion. Life insurance firms continued to focus on selling protection products
in preparation for IFRS 17, which will come into effect in January 2021. Under the new standard,

insurance liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future cash flows, and the use of
current interest rates to discount the insurance liabilities will pressure the reported capitalization
of insurers. The pressure will be more significant for insurers that have a large book of negative
spread in-force savings policies.

Non-life premium income grew by 2.4 percent to KRW 86.5 trillion, backed by a 4.8 percent in-

crease in general property and casualty (P&C) insurance premiums. The motor insurance sector
also supported the overall growth of the non-life insurance market as its premium income rose

by 2.8 percent to KRW 16.9 trillion. There was a 2.8 percent increase in long-term insurance premiums, which were worth KRW 49.1 trillion, or 56 percent of the total non-life insurance market.
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The insurance industry in Korea reported robust net income results for 2017 - a 33 percent growth

In 2017, the return on assets (ROA) ratio of the Korean insurance industry improved by 0.14 per-

year over year to KRW 7.8 trillion - due to the combination of higher investment income and reduced

centage point to 0.73 percent, while the return on equity (ROE) ratio was up 1.46 percentage point

Although they continued to suffer underwriting losses, their investment operations remained strong

1.47 percent and an ROE of 11.46 percent. Low profitability continued to present challenges to life

underwriting losses according to the preliminary data released by the Financial Supervisory Service.
amid a bullish stock market and interest rate hikes, allowing them to stay in the black.

Life insurers saw their net income jump by 63.4 percent year on year to close to KRW 4 trillion,
driven by a rise in investment income. Interest and dividend income boosted their investment

profit by 3.1 percent to approximately KRW 22 trillion. Their underwriting losses also shrank, and

a rise in interest rates helped ease a squeeze in the spread between the net investment yield and
the guaranteed interest rates.

Non-life insurers recorded an 11.8 percent increase in net income to over KRW 3.8 trillion. Their

underwriting losses diminished thanks to the continued improvement in motor insurance loss ratios. Rising interest rates also helped boost their investment profit, which was up 6.5 percent year
on year to KRW 7.2 trillion.

to 7.61 percent. Non-life insurers reported higher profitability than life insurers, with an ROA of
insurers as they were struggling with underwriting losses as well as a decline in premium income.

As of the end of 2017, insurers’ total assets grew by 7.3 percent year on year to KRW 1,110 trillion.

Non-life insurers recorded a higher growth rate of 9.9 percent compared to life insurers, which saw
their assets increase by 6.5 percent. The total assets were made up of KRW 833 trillion from life
insurance and KRW 277 trillion from non-life insurance. The total shareholders’ equity of the insur-

ance industry soared by 9.5 percent to KRW 107.5 trillion on the back of strong net income results
for the year.

Meanwhile, Korea’s insurance penetration rate has remained stable at the 12 percent range since
2014. In 2017, the rate was 12.1 percent, the 5th highest level in the world.

Insurance Penetration Rate

Net Income

(Unit: %)
(Unit: KRW billion)

Life Insurers

Non-Life Insurers
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Total

(Source: Financial Supervisory Service)

FY 2017

FY 2016

Change (%)

3,878.0

3,469.2

11.8

3,954.3

7,832.3

2,420.7

5,889.9

63.4

33.0

ROA and ROE
(Unit: %)

ROA
ROE

Life Insurers

Non-Life Insurers
Total

Life Insurers

Non-Life Insurers
Total

(Source: Financial Supervisory Service)

FY 2017

FY 2016

1.47

1.45

0.49

0.32

Change (%p)
0.17

0.02

0.73

0.59

0.14

11.46

11.21

0.25

5.73

7.61

3.73

6.15

2.00

1.46

Total Assets and Shareholders’ Equity
(Unit: KRW trillion)

Total Assets

Life Insurers

Non-Life Insurers
Total

Life Insurers

Shareholders’
Non-Life Insurers
Equity
Total

FY 2017

FY 2016

277.0

252.0

833.0

782.1

Change (%)
6.5

9.9

1,110.0

1,034.1

7.3

35.2

32.5

8.5

72.3

107.5

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
(Source: Financial Supervisory Service)

65.8

98.2

9.9

9.5

Insurance Penetration Rate

(Source: Korea Insurance Research Institute)

FY 2017
12.1

FY 2016
12.8

Change (%p)
-0.7
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Prospects
for 2018

Slow economic growth and high levels of market maturity are driving down the growth of the

Life Insurance

nation’s nominal economic growth rates have been on track to recovery since 2012, its insurance

a continued decline in savings insurance premiums, driven by potential pressures on insurers’

insurance industry in Korea. Premium income is set to grow by 1.24 percent in 2018. Although the

market growth has continued to slow down to -1.9 percent in 2017 from 3.5 percent in 2016 and 5.5
percent in 2015.

FY 2015

Total

Real Economic Growth

bilities at current interest rate values and provide higher levels of reserves. Savings life insurance
are likely to grow on the back of a strong stock market performance. Another boost will come

(Units: KRW trillion, %)

Non-Life

capitalization upon the adoption of IFRS17, which will require insurers to measure their policy lia-

premiums are expected to decrease by 3 percent. Meanwhile, sales of unit-linked savings policies

Insurance Market Growth Trends

Life

The life insurance market is expected to grow by 0.3 percent next year. This slow growth reflects

FY 2016

FY 2017

Premium Growth Premium Growth Premium Growth
Rate
Rate
Rate
117.2

6.0

119.8

2.2

113.9

-4.9

197.4

5.5

204.3

3.5

200.4

-1.9

80.2

4.8

2.8

84.5

5.4

2.8

86.5

2.4

3.1

FY 2018(F)
Growth
Rate
0.3

2.5

1.24
3.0

(Sources: Korea Insurance Research Institute, General Insurance Association of Korea, Korea Life Insurance Association)

from the retirement annuity sector, which is expected to grow 5.3 percent.

Premium income from protection policies is projected to increase by 2.8 percent in 2018 as life
insurance companies are seeking to sell more protection products such as long-term healthcare

and critical illness policies, instead of savings products. Given the maturity of the market, howev-

er, a rapid growth of the market is unlikely. The government’s plan to expand national healthcare

insurance coverage may reduce demand for protection products offered by private insurers. On
the other hand, increasing life expectancy may create demand for new types of life and health insurance products.

Life Insurance Market Growth Trends
(Units: KRW trillion, %)

Non-Life Insurance

The non-life insurance market is forecast to grow by 2.5 percent in 2018. By line of business, gener-

54

al P&C insurance is expected to grow by 4.5 percent, backed by marine (excluding hull insurance),
guarantee, liability and accident businesses. The expansion of mandatory insurance such as di-

saster liability insurance is also driving the growth of the general P&C insurance market. However,
a decrease in government budget for social infrastructure development may adversely affect con-

struction investment, leading to a drop in surety bond premiums. Motor insurance premiums are
expected to increase by 3.2 percent as the number of high-valued vehicles is rising. Premium rate

decreases, however, will limit the growth of the overall motor insurance market. A contraction in
non-life savings insurance and annuity plans is set to continue into 2018 due to stagnant household income growth and reduced tax benefits for those products.

Non-Life Insurance Market Growth Trends
(Units: KRW trillion, %)

FY 2016

Long-term
Annuity

Individual Annuity

Retirement Annuity

Motor

General P&C
Fire

Marine

Guarantee
Casualty

Total

FY 2017

Premium

Growth Rate

Premium

Growth Rate

11.8

13.7

11.7

-1.4

7.9

24.7

7.9

0.0

8.5

2.6

47.8
3.9

16.4
0.3

2.6

-3.6

Growth Rate
2.1
1.8

-4.5

-5.0
5.0

16.9

2.8

3.2

-1.0

0.3

-1.5

-2.0

1.7

9.6

5.4

-14.3

6.0

5.4

84.5

3.7

2.8

9.4

0.6

1.6

49.1

FY 2018(F)

0.6

5.3

8.9
0.6

6.3

86.5

(Sources: Korea Insurance Research Institute, General Insurance Association of Korea)

4.8
5.9

3.7

2.4

4.5
2.0

4.7

2.5

Protection
Savings

Retirement Annuity
Total

Premium
39.3

FY 2016

Growth Rate Premium
7.1

44.3

-3.9

119.8

2.2

36.1

5.2

FY 2017

FY 2018(F)

Growth Rate

Growth Rate

38.9

-12.3

-3.0

113.9

-4.9

0.3

40.6

34.5

✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
(Sources: Korea Insurance Research Institute, Financial Supervisory Service)

3.1

-4.5

2.8

5.3
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Korean Re delivered
strong underwriting
results for 2017
despite a series of
large loss events
including hurricanes.

Business Highlights

The domestic insurance market continued to slow down in 2017 amid improving but still weak
macroeconomic conditions. The volume of new business fell as the market reached the maturity
stage. Increasing household debt also discouraged consumers from buying insurance. Despite this

setback in top-line growth, insurers reported a significant improvement in bottom-line growth as
their loss ratios declined in the wake of premium rate increases for motor insurance and medical

expense insurance. Meanwhile, insurers in Korea have been working to increase their capital as
their RBC ratios keep falling. The upcoming implementation of IFRS17 and a new RBC regime
called K-ICS would increasingly put pressure on the capitalization of insurance companies.

Korean Re delivered strong underwriting results for 2017 despite a series of large loss events
including hurricanes. Our underwriting profit excluding foreign exchange effects surged by

54 percent to KRW 79.4 billion, the second highest ever, on the back of strict underwriting
discipline and portfolio readjustment. On the other hand, we posted weaker investment results
as we booked impairment losses from our investment in KDB Life’s private equity fund that was

made back in 2009. As a result, net income for the year decreased by KRW 27 billion to KRW 133
billion, although it remained at a relatively stable level.

We reported a 7.8 percent increase to KRW 7,208.1 billion for 2017 compared to the prior year’s

4.7 percent growth. Our net written premiums increased by 6.9 percent to KRW 5,021.8 billion. In

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

terms of total assets, 2017 was a record year for us as we saw our total assets surpass the KRW

10 trillion mark. The value of our total assets grew by KRW 484.2 billion year over year to KRW

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

10,065.3 billion as of late December 2017. Our invested assets amounted to KRW 5,623.5 billion,

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

up KRW 319 billion year over year.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For 2018, we set a goal of achieving a 4.6 percent growth in gross written premiums and a net

Independent Auditors’ Report

income of KRW 200 billion. We expect our top-line growth to be supported by price increases

in the U.S. and Europe and the growing business volume from our overseas branches. Net
income results are also expected to be boosted by our efforts to build a more profitable book of

overseas business and an improvement in investment returns such as interest gains amid rising
interest rates.

Premium Income
Growth

7.8%

Analysis of Operating Results

Korean Re achieved a strong top-line growth for 2017, with gross written premiums increasing
by 7.8 percent to KRW 7,208.1 billion. Our domestic business continued to perform robustly

with a 6.5 percent growth, and premiums from our overseas business soared by 12.7 percent - a
stronger growth than the previous year’s 6.9 percent.

Premiums from domestic personal lines jumped by 9.5 percent year over year due to the effect
of a rise in primary long-term insurance rates and increased writings of profitable life business.

Domestic commercial lines of business grew by 2 percent, and the main drivers of the growth
were the expansion of the mobile phone insurance market and new business covering satellite
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and offshore wind power risks. Still we had to struggle with a stagnant commercial insurance
market and a reduction in reinsurance cession from government-sponsored insurance plans,

Overseas Premium
Income Growth

12.7%

• Independent Auditors’ Report

Gross Written Premiums: Domestic vs Overseas

including crop insurance.

(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

FY2017
(KRW)

Our overseas business also showed an improvement in growth to 12.7 percent in 2017 from 6.9
percent in 2016, as we increased our international facultative business and focused on profitable

business in the developed markets. The growth of our global business was shown in most lines
of business except for casualty and marine business, which had underperformed in 2016.

FY2017
(USD)

FY2016
(KRW)

FY2016
(USD)

YoY
Change

Domestic

5,544.5

4,892.8

5,208.3

4,434.0

6.5%

Overseas

1,663.6

1,468.1

1,476.2

1,256.7

12.7%

In terms of net written premiums, we reported a solid growth of 6.9 percent in step with the
increase in gross written premiums. The overall retention rate dropped slightly from 70.3 percent

to 69.7 percent as we increased our retrocession for some of our motor and marine businesses,

Overseas Business Portfolio by Region

which recorded high loss ratios.

Others*
3.2%
Africa
0.7%

Premium Volume
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

58

◀ HOME ▶

Financial Review

Korean Re Annual Report 2017

FY2017
(KRW)

FY2017
(USD)

FY2016
(KRW)

FY2016
(USD)

YoY
Change

Gross Written Premiums

7,208.1

6,360.8

6,684.5

5,690.7

7.8%

Net Written Premiums

5,021.8

4,431.5

4,697.8

3,999.4

6.9%

Earned Premiums

5,003.5

4,415.4

4,676.8

3,981.5

7.0%

Ceded Premiums

2,186.3

1,929.3

1,986.7

1,691.3

10.0%

Europe
15.9%

Latin
America
6.6%
North
America
19.6%

Overseas Business Portfolio by Line of
Business
Motor
4.5%

East Asia
30.0%

Middle East
12.3%

Southeast Asia
11.7%

Casualty
12.8%

Property
(including
Engineering)
49.8%

Life
20.4%
Marine
12.5%

* Retrocession & multi-territory accounts

Breakdown of Gross Written Premiums
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

YoY
Change

Our strategy to build a geographically balanced overseas business portfolio continued to pay off

907.9

2.5%

590.8

503.0

4.8%

percent in 2016. The portions of Latin America and Europe increased by 3.3 percentage points

506.2

533.2

453.9

7.6%

1,057.8

933.5

998.8

850.3

5.9%

1,861.0

1,642.3

1,652.4

1,406.7

12.6%

682.7

602.5

638.9

543.9

6.9%

FY2017
(KRW)

FY2017
(USD)

FY2016
(KRW)

FY2016
(USD)

1,093.6

965.1

1,066.5

Engineering

619.3

546.5

Marine

573.6

Casualty
Long-term

Property

Motor

1,204.6

1,063.0

1,091.0

928.8

10.4%

Singapore Branch

Life

92.0

81.2

89.7

76.4

2.6%

Korean Re Underwriting
Ltd. (KRUL)

23.4

20.7

23.3

19.8

0.4%

7,208.1

6,360.8

6,684.5

5,690.8

7.8%

Total

✽ YoY Change is based on figures in KRW.
✽✽ Engineering includes nuclear, agriculture and other specialty lines.
✽✽✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

in 2017. East Asia accounted for 30 percent of our overseas business portfolio, down from 31.5
and 1.1 percentage points respectively to 6.6 percent and 15.9 percent. By country, the U.S. and
China are our two major markets. The U.S. took up the largest share of 19.2 percent, followed
by China at 19.1 percent.

98.4%
Combined Ratio

Combined Ratio

Our combined ratio improved to 98.4 percent in 2017 from 98.8 percent in 2016. Domestic
commercial lines posted a particularly robust combined ratio of 90.9 percent compared to the
previous year’s 93.1 percent, while the ratio for personal lines business was down marginally
to 99.6 percent. The combined ratio for overseas business fell slightly to 100.3 percent in spite

of unusually large natural catastrophes such as Hurricanes Harvey, Irma and Maria (HIM). Our
retained losses were relatively limited thanks to solid protection from retrocession programs.

Our strategy to reduce participation in underperforming treaties also helped improve the
combined ratio. Excluding the U.S. hurricanes, our overseas business recorded a combined ratio
of 96.5 percent in 2017.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
In the overseas market, Korean Re increased its business in profitable markets and reduced
participation in poorly performing treaties such as U.S. liability and Chinese property in order to
improve overall profitability.

Earned Premiums

• Independent Auditors’ Report

Korean Re’s Share Price
position of foreign investors. The market capitalization of the Korea Composite Stock Price Index

(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Net Operating Expenses

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The domestic stock market surged amid price hikes of large-cap stocks and strong net buying

Underwriting Results

Incurred Losses

•

FY2017
(KRW)

FY2017
(USD)

FY2016
(KRW)

FY2016
(USD)

YoY
Change

3,999.0

3,528.9

3,819.1

3,251.3

4.7%

925.8

817.0

821.9

699.7

12.6%

5,003.5

4,415.4

4,676.8

3,981.5

7.0%

Combined Ratio

98.4%

98.8%

- 0.4%p

(KOSPI) hit a record high of KRW 1,664 trillion. KOSPI went through the roof to a record close of
2,467.49p on the last day of trading in 2017, up 21.8 percent from a year before.

The closing price of the first trading day of the year marked a yearly low of 2,026.16p, and
the stock market continued to fly high on the back of solid fundamentals of local businesses
including cyclical stocks, which are sensitive to economic ups and downs. In particular,

pharmaceuticals, electric and electronic companies and securities brokerage firms showed a
substantial improvement in their business results. The North Korea risk emerged in August and
September, sending the stock market fall instantly but only to a limited extent. The market soon

rallied and set a yearly high of 2,557.97p at the close of trading on November 3. Afterwards, the
market weakened slightly on the Bank of Korea’s decision to raise its benchmark interest rate in
late November.

Solvency Margin Ratio
Solvency Margin Ratio
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FY 2017

FY 2016

YoY Change

221.1%

222.2%

- 1.1%p

We reported a solvency margin ratio of 221.1 percent in 2017, although it was down 1.1

percentage points from a year earlier. This drop in the ratio, also known as the RBC ratio, was
attributable to a growth in risk exposures and a reduction in mark-to-market gains on available
for sale securities following interest rate hikes.

Net Income

We managed to deliver robust business results for 2017 with a net income of KRW 133 billion,

although it was down from the previous year. Net underwriting income sharply increased to
KRW 170.1 billion, while net investment income fell to KRW 25.4 billion. When excluding foreign

exchange effects, our net underwriting income was KRW 79.4 billion, the second-highest in
our history, whereas net investment income amounted to KRW 132.9 billion, according to the
Separate Financial Statements.

A strong Korean won had a negative impact on the company’s bottom-line for 2017. Large natural

catastrophe events eroded our after-tax net income by KRW 48.6 billion. We sustained KRW 47.6
billion in losses from HIM and KRW 16.5 billion in losses from Typhoon Hato in Hong Kong.

On the investment operation side, we posted weaker investment results in 2017 as we booked
impairment losses from our investment in KDB Life’s private equity fund that was made back in
2009. When excluding gains and losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance liabilities, our

net investment income amounted to KRW 132.9 billion, with an investment return of 2.5 percent.
As we are working to build a more diversified investment portfolio, we expect our investment yield
to improve next year, helped particularly by interest gains amid rising interest rates.

Korean Re’s stock relatively underperformed in 2017 with the year-end closing price down 3.5
percent to KRW 11,000. It recorded a yearly high of KRW 13,500 on August 2. This weak stock
performance was attributable to two factors: declines in some of our business indicators such
as net income and ROE; and strong long positions by investors toward large-cap stocks.

Most stock market analysts present an optimistic prospect for our stock performance going
forward in spite of weakening valuation in the past year. They agree that Korean Re’s stock is
substantially undervalued and has the potential for a notable turnaround. As of year-end, the

price-to-book ratio remained at 0.58. In 2018, we expect our stock to gain some strength, with

improving underwriting and investment results backed by renewal price hikes and increasing
interest rates. Another factor behind the positive outlook is the launch of the KRX 300 Index

where Korean Re was incorporated. This may help increase investment flows into mid and lower
cap stocks, helping to boost our stock valuation going forward.

61

Financial
Message from
from the
the CEO
CEO | Board
Board of
of Management
Management | Summary
Summary of
of 2017
2017 | Inside
InsideKorean
KoreanRe
Re | Review
Review of
of Operations
Operations | CSR
CSR | Market
Market Overview
Overview | Financial
Financial Review
Review | Corporate
Financial Highlights
Highlights | Message
Corporate Information
Information

HOME ▶▶
◀◀ HOME

Financial Review

Korean Re Annual Report 2017

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

•

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

• Independent Auditors’ Report

Risk Management Report
Objectives

Risk Governance

objectives. The objectives are as follows:

and controls of risks with clear accountability. This structure supports risk-based decision-

Korean Re implements enterprise risk management to achieve a set of risk management

Korean Re has built a comprehensive framework for risk governance based on central oversight
making and oversight across all operations of our business. Risk governance defines the roles

• Establishing risk management infrastructure to achieve ‘Vision 2050’

and responsibilities of the Board of Directors, committees, management structures, and related

: Achieving long-term sustainable growth and high profitability

teams. It also involves the implementation of three lines of defense as part of the structure.

• Continuously enhancing shareholder value

• Maintaining a high credibility with stakeholders, credit rating agencies and supervisory
agencies; and

• Diversifying insurance and investment portfolios and enhancing risk management with
regard to overseas business growth

A ‘Three Lines of Defense model’ that we implement demonstrates our risk governance,
specifying the roles of business and oversight organizations in managing our risk profile. The

first line of defense includes front-line managers and staff who are responsible for day-to-day
risk management and decision-making (global office managers and staff are also the first line

of defense). They have primary responsibility for maintaining an effective control environment
and ensuring that all activities are within our risk appetite. The second line of defense deals

with setting risk policies and overseeing our risk management status. It involves the Risk
Management Team, Chief Risk Officer, risk management committees, and compliance functions
such as the Compliance Team, Compliance Officer and Internal Control Committee. The third
line of defense provides independent assurance through an internal audit and validates the

Three Lines of Defense

effectiveness of the first and second lines of defense in fulfilling their responsibilities and

Board of Directors
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managing our risk profile.

CEO
1st Line

2nd Line

3rd Line

Risk
Management
Committee

Executive
Officers
(Business Units)

Risk
Management
Special
Committee

CRO

Internal
Control
Committee

Audit
Committee

Compliance
Officer

Standing
Auditor

Individual Risk
Management
Teams

Risk
Management
Team

Strategic Risk Management

Korean Re’s business strategy is aligned with the risk management strategy and risk appetite.
The Risk Appetite Framework provides the main direction to steer the company, and all risks

are managed under the clear risk appetite framework. Based on the capital plan and financial
targets linked to our risk appetite, we establish business plans and operate the business with
stability by monitoring and evaluating business performance according to risk indicators.

Risk Appetite Framework

Risk
Appetite

Investment
Deliberation
Committee
Compliance
Team

Internal
Audit Officer
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Risk
Tolerance
Risk Limit

“The amount and type of risk we are
willing to accept in pursuit of our
business strategies”
“The maximum amount of risk we are
willing to tolerate”
“The operational risk amount we are
allowed to be exposed to within risk
tolerance”
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Korean Re’s risk appetite framework is an enterprise-wide risk management guideline made up

Optimized Portfolio

Risk appetite defines the amount of risk we should accept in consideration of its vision and

of each line of business. Each underwriting team analyzes the attractiveness of their business

of three important components: risk appetite, risk tolerance, and risk limit.
business objectives. The risk appetite statement is as follows:

• Focus on the business in which we have comparable advantage and achieve an ROE of more
than 9 percent

• Retain risks at a medium-low level considering capital level

• Maintain the solvency ratio within an optimal range (200 - 250 percent)

• Improve capital efficiency by optimizing insurance and investment portfolios; and
• Maintain credit ratings of ‘A’ or above

Risk appetite plays a significant role in maintaining our risk profile within the boundaries
defined by different objectives such as profitability, solvency, growth, and liquidity. Risk appetite

provides a solid foundation for decision-making: strategic asset allocation, capital planning,
portfolio management and more.

Risk tolerance represents a quantitative level of risk acceptance within the risk appetite and

Korean Re establishes annual plans for the insurance business by analyzing risk and profitability
through various market analysis and forecasts growth and profitability of each line of business.
Based on this, the Strategic Planning Team draws up plans for optimal insurance portfolios and

then finalizes annual plans that can achieve capital efficiency under risk appetite and maximize
profitability after going through a comprehensive analysis of profitability and risk.

Key Risks

We manage five key risks – insurance risk, credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and operational

risk – that are likely to have a significant impact on our financial results or operational viability.

In doing so, we implement a series of procedures including risk identification, measurement,
control, analysis and reporting.

With regard to insurance, market and credit risks, we measure them on a regular basis using our
internal model that takes the Value-at-Risk approach through stochastic simulation.

provides macro guidelines for capital adequacy, liquidity, and concentration. The risk tolerance
statement is as follows:

• Maintain the solvency ratio within a stable range (above 170 percent)
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• Continuously improve Risk Adjusted Return on Capital(RAROC)
• Annual Nat. Cat. loss ≤ 15 percent of available capital
• Ability to fulfill continuous responsibilities (liquidity)

- Keeping the liquidity ratio over 100 percent under a stressed scenario

Risk limit describes the risk capacity constraints determined by capital and liquidity resources to
ensure compliance with our risk appetite and risk tolerance.

Insurance Risk
• Premium Risk
• Reserve Risk
• Nat. Cat. Risk

Strategic Risk

Key Risks

Financial Risk

Market Risk

• Interest Rate Risk
• Equity Risk
• Exchange Rate Risk

Credit Risk

Other Key Risks
Reputational Risk

Liquidity Risk

Operational Risk

Emerging Risk

Capital Planning

Insurance Risk

capital management. To ensure Korean Re’s sound capital management, we align our risk

inadequacy of premiums or reserves for natural catastrophe or non-catastrophe events, or from

Korean Re’s capital is managed through a framework which provides a robust foundation for
management strategy with our long term business strategy. Strategic objectives are examined

from the perspective of risk management strategy to be certain if they are in accordance with
our risk appetite, and the results are reflected to the business plans.

Korean Re’s capital management framework is comprised of three main modules including

‘capital planning,’ ‘business planning,’ and ‘risk planning’. Each module is structured to ensure
compliance with Korean Re’s risk appetite and tolerance.

Korean Re defines insurance risk as the risk of unexpected financial losses arising from the
the unpredictability of biometric risks such as the mortality rate.

We manage insurance risks in a consistent manner across the company by assessing and

monitoring them in accordance with clearly defined underwriting guidelines. Furthermore, we
utilize a natural catastrophe modelling program and an accumulation management system to
effectively control catastrophe risk at the enterprise level.
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Korean Re defines market risk as the risk of losses arising from fluctuations of the value of assets
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Other Risks

and liabilities due to changes in relevant factors such as interest rates, stock prices and foreign

Strategic Risk

foreign exchange risk using derivatives in order to keep our exposure at a reasonable level.

make decisions, allocate resources or adapt to changes in the business environment including

exchange rates. We manage this risk in our day-to-day operations and, in particular, hedge against

Meanwhile, we closely monitor global economic and financial market conditions and outlook
that can affect our investment performance in order to analyze their potential impact and come
up with effective countermeasures.

Credit Risk

Our credit risk system focuses on any losses arising from the failure of the counterparty to
a reinsurance contract to meet its contractual obligations or from deterioration in the credit
quality of invested assets.

We conduct an analysis of potential losses before making any high-risk business decisions,

for example, on whether to write new business or invest in derivatives. When necessary, such

Strategic risk arises from the inability to implement appropriate business plans and strategies,
changes in economic conditions and competitive landscape.

Korean Re formulates an overall strategy for risk profile and capital allocation, complies with
and implements its business strategies as devised, and monitors them vigilantly.
Reputational Risk

We define reputational risk as the risk of an event negatively affecting the stakeholders’

perceptions of the company. When there is a gap between stakeholders’ expectation and the
company’s practices, reputation is at risk. Events that could cause reputational risk are as follows:

External Events

decisions are made through the review process of the Risk Management Special Committee and

• Market conditions

risks is also an essential element of our preemptive risk management system.

• Natural or man-made catastrophes

the Investment Deliberation Committee. Identifying any abnormal signs related to the retained
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Liquidity Risk

We plan and manage our liquidity positions in order to deal with future claims payments and

expenses as they arise. To this end, we set liquidity limits based on our future cash flow and
monitor them regularly.

Operational Risk

Korean Re defines operational risk as the risk of potential losses arising from inadequate or
failed internal processes, personnel or systems, or from external events. We have identified a
set of operational risks that cover various business units and activities including new product
development, pricing, underwriting, claims management, client risk, fraud, accounting, and strategy.

We manage these risks through effective policies and procedures including a clear segregation
of duties, timely internal control and reporting systems. Through the internal control system,
operational risks are managed systemically based on the Code of Conduct, regulations and ethics.

Furthermore, we control key risks through the Top Risk Assessment. The Top Risk Assessment
is a framework to identify, assess, manage, mitigate and monitor material risks. The company

defines the risks that are likely to have a significant impact on the financial results or
operational viability.

• Industry and regulatory environment
• Negative publicity

• Change in customers’ behavior

Internal Events

• Inadequate or failed internal controls and
processes
• Compliance issues
• Ethical issues

And the risk of these events are incorporated and managed with our operational risk management framework.
Emerging Risk

Emerging risk represents the risk that may develop or that already exists and keeps evolving. Ko-

rean Re incorporates emerging risks information, wherever available, into its business decisions in
order to protect key stakeholders. We control emerging risks through the Top Risk Assessment
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For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Assets

Ⅱ. Financial assets
1. Deposits

2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

3. Available-for-sale financial assets

4. Held-to-maturity financial assets

5. Derivative financial assets designated as hedges

6. Loans

7. Receivables
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Ⅲ. Property and equipment

Ⅳ. Investment properties

Ⅴ. Intangible assets

Ⅵ. Other non-financial assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Ⅰ. Insurance contract liabilities

Ⅱ. Financial liabilities

Ⅲ. Other non-financial liabilities

1. Current income tax liabilities

2. Deferred income tax liabilities

3. Retirement benefit liabilities

4. Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Ⅰ. Capital stock

Ⅱ. Capital surplus

Ⅲ. Hybrid equity security

Ⅳ. Capital adjustments

Ⅴ. Accumulated other comprehensive income

Ⅵ. Retained earnings

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

• Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016

Ⅰ. Cash and cash equivalents
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FY 2017
(KRW)
129,265

FY 2017
(USD)
119,491

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

193,597

158,647

7,842,970

7,249,927

7,353,730

6,026,166

697,258

644,535

1,044,527

855,959

298,731

2,444,769

276,143

2,259,908

1,199,720

1,109,004

668,009

617,498

27,698

25,604

423,856

3,039,718
218,296
-

224,001

347,338

2,490,960
178,887
-

183,562

2,506,785

2,317,235

2,403,332

1,969,460

110,080

101,756

110,638

90,664

1,885,521

1,742,948

1,818,709

79,440

18,033

73,433

16,669

81,112

23,341

66,469

19,127

1,490,379

10,065,308

9,304,224

9,581,127

7,851,452

5,157,756

4,767,754

4,964,058

4,067,900

2,388,892
355,643
41,148

280,995
11,243

22,257

2,208,257
328,752
38,037

259,748
10,393

20,574

2,156,516
348,967
5

303,489
13,975

31,498

1,767,202
285,967
4

248,700
11,452

25,811

7,902,292

7,304,763

7,469,541

6,121,069

60,185

55,634

60,185

49,320

176,375

212,286

163,038

196,234

176,375

212,286

144,534

173,962

(35,311)

(32,641)

(35,311)

(28,936)

1,643,600

1,519,320

1,558,206

1,276,904

105,882

2,163,017

10,065,308

97,876

1,999,461

9,304,224

139,845

2,111,586

9,581,127

114,599

1,730,383

7,851,452

Note: For the B/S section, Korean won amounts have been converted into the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate of KRW 1,081.80 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,220.30
for FY 2016. For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW 1,133.20 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,174.63 for FY 2016.
✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Ⅰ. Operating revenue
1. Premium income

2. Reinsurance income

3. Expenses recovered

4. Interest income

5. Dividend income

6. Investment income from financial instruments

7. Other operating revenues

Ⅱ. Operating expenses

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

FY 2016
(KRW)

FY 2016
(USD)

9,116,763

8,045,147

8,559,732

7,287,172

1,309,763

1,155,809

1,265,547

1,077,401

122,394

108,007

95,586

81,375

73,987

65,290

7,208,079
335,531
16,093

50,915

6,360,818
296,092
14,201

44,930

6,684,538
307,527
27,127

63,178

116,229

5,690,760
261,808
23,094

53,785

98,949

8,941,116

7,890,148

8,352,484

7,110,736

2. Insurance claims and benefits expenses

5,036,675

4,444,648

4,716,351

4,015,180

4. Operating and administrative expenses

1,263,667

1,115,131

1,130,856

962,734

2,791

2,463

3,174

2,702

1. Reinsurance expenses

3. Provision for insurance contract liabilities

5. Claim handling expenses

6. Asset management expenses

7. Interest expenses

8. Investment expenses from financial instruments

9. Other operating expenses

Ⅲ. Operating income

Ⅳ. Non-operating income

Ⅴ. Non-operating expense

2,186,328
111,053
95,197
6

58,806

186,594

1,929,340
97,999

84,007
5

51,894

164,661

1,986,692
300,265
93,443
53

52,117

69,533

1,691,334
255,625
79,551
45

44,369

59,196

175,646

154,999

207,248

176,436

2,440

2,153

1,836

1,563

242

214

2,859

2,434

Ⅵ. Income before income taxes

173,449

153,060

208,271

177,307

Ⅷ. Net income

133,008

117,373

160,049

136,254

Ⅶ. Income tax expenses

Ⅸ. Other comprehensive income

Ⅹ. Total comprehensive income

40,440

(33,963)
99,045

35,687

(29,971)
87,402

48,222

(14,793)
145,256

41,053

(12,594)
123,660

Note: For the B/S section, Korean won amounts have been converted into the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate of KRW 1,081.80 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,220.30
for FY 2016. For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW 1,133.20 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,174.63 for FY 2016.
✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity (KRW)

•

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

• Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity (USD)

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Unit: KRW million)

As at January 1, 2016
Cash dividends

Dividends of hybrid equity security

Net income

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

70

Loss on valuation of derivative
instruments designated as cash flow
hedges

Gain on remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income

As at December 31, 2016

As at January 1, 2017
Cash dividends

Dividends of hybrid equity security

Net income

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Loss on valuation of held-to-maturity
financial assets

Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

Gain on valuation of derivative
instruments designated as cash flow
hedges

Gain on remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income

As at December 31, 2017

Capital
stock

Capital
surplus

60,185

176,375

-

-

-

-

-

-

Hybrid
equity
security

212,286
-

-

-

Accumulated
Capital
other
adjustments comprehensive
income
154,638

1,448,584

2,016,757

-

-

(10,223)

(10,223)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(13,884)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

176,375

-

212,286

Total

(35,311)

-

60,185

Retained
earnings
(40,204)
160,049

(40,204)
160,049

-

(13,884)

382

-

382

-

(2,322)

-

(2,322)

-

1,031

-

1,031

-

(14,793)

(35,311)

139,845

160,049

1,558,206

145,256

2,111,586

60,185

176,375

212,286

(35,311)

139,845

1,558,206

2,111,586

-

-

-

-

-

(10,282)

(10,282)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(27,395)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

60,185

-

176,375

(37,332)
133,008

(37,332)
133,008

-

(27,395)

(3,647)

-

(3,647)

-

(8,536)

-

(8,536)

-

-

2,337

-

2,337

-

-

3,278

-

3,278

-

212,286

-

(35,311)

(33,963)
105,882

133,008

1,643,600

99,045

2,163,017

(Unit: USD thousand)

As at January 1, 2016
Cash dividends

Dividends of hybrid equity security

Net income

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

Loss on valuation of derivative
instruments designated as cash flow
hedges

Gain on remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income

As at December 31, 2016

As at January 1, 2017
Cash dividends

Dividends of hybrid equity security

Net income

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Loss on valuation of held-to-maturity
financial assets

Exchange difference on translating
foreign operations

Gain on valuation of derivative
instruments designated as cash flow
hedges

Gain on remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income

As at December 31, 2017

Capital
stock

Capital
surplus

55,634

163,038

-

-

-

-

-

-

Hybrid
equity
security

196,234
-

-

-

Accumulated
Capital
other
adjustments comprehensive
income

Retained
earnings

Total

(32,641)

142,945

1,339,050

1,864,260

-

-

(9,450)

(9,450)

-

-

-

(37,164)

(37,164)

-

147,947

147,947

-

(12,834)

-

-

-

-

(12,834)

-

-

-

-

353

-

353

-

-

-

-

(2,146)

-

(2,146)

-

-

-

-

953

-

953

-

55,634

-

163,038

-

196,234

-

(13,674)

(32,641)

129,271

147,947

1,440,383

134,273

1,951,919

55,634

163,038

196,234

(32,641)

129,271

1,440,383

1,951,919

-

-

-

-

-

(9,505)

(9,505)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(34,509)

(34,509)

-

122,951

122,951

-

(25,324)

-

-

-

-

(25,324)

-

-

-

-

(3,371)

-

(3,371)

-

-

-

-

(7,891)

-

(7,891)

-

-

-

-

2,160

-

2,160

-

-

-

-

3,031

-

3,031

-

55,634

-

163,038

-

196,234

-

(32,641)

(31,395)
97,876

Note: Korean won amounts have been converted into the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate of KRW 1,081.80 per USD 1.

122,951

1,519,320

91,556

1,999,461
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Consolidated Statements of
Cash flows
1. Income before income taxes

2. Cash generated from operations

3. Receipt of interest

4. Payment of interest

5. Receipt of dividend

6. Refund(payment) of income taxes

Ⅱ. Cash flows from investing activities
1. Cash inflows

2. Cash outflows
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Ⅲ. Cash flows from financing activities
1. Cash inflows

2. Cash outflows

559,592
173,449

FY 2017
(USD)

517,279
160,334

279,928

258,761

(272)

(251)

99,911

16,093

(9,517)

92,356

14,876

(8,797)

208,271

341,795
170,672

129,708

106,292

(438)

(359)

102,773
27,127

(50,348)

84,219

22,230

(41,259)

(369,235)

(302,577)

(867,388)

(801,801)

(1,308,208)

(1,072,038)

141

130

238

195

(47,527)
(47,668)

266,595

(43,934)

(50,440)

769,461

(41,334)

(50,678)

(41,529)

(82)

(67)

(61,861)

Ⅵ. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

2,588

193,597

2,393

129,265

938,973

(44,064)

(66,921)

Ⅶ. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

417,093

FY 2016
(USD)

(535,206)

Ⅳ. Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(Ⅰ+Ⅱ+Ⅲ)

Ⅴ. Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash
and cash equivalents

FY 2016
(KRW)

(578,986)
288,402

178,959

119,491

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

• Independent Auditors’ Report

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

FY 2017
(KRW)

•

Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Ⅰ. Cash flows from operating activities
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(2,582)

196,261

193,597

(2,116)

160,830

158,647

Note: For the B/S section, Korean won amounts have been converted into the U.S. dollar based on the exchange rate of KRW 1,081.80 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,220.30
for FY 2016. For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW 1,133.20 per USD 1 for FY 2017 and KRW 1,174.63 for FY 2016.
✽ Individual figures may not add up to the total shown due to rounding.

(1) Basis of financial statement preparation

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) prepare statutory financial statements in the Korean language in
accordance with Korea International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”) enacted by the Act on External Audit of Stock Companies. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the Korean language financial statements. In the
event of any differences in interpreting the financial statements or the independent auditors’ report thereon, the Korean version, which is used
for regulatory reporting purposes, shall prevail.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), derivative financial instruments designated as hedges and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial instruments which are
measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities designated as hedged items of fair value hedge are not recorded at amortized cost but recorded
after reflecting the change in fair value corresponding to the risk hedged in effective hedge relationships.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the Korean won (“KRW”) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except
when otherwise indicated.
For the convenience of the reader, the consolidated financial statements have been condensed, restructured, and translated from Korean to
English.

The Group has changed the classification of some accounts in the prior year financial statements to be consistent with that in the current year
financial statements for the purpose of comparison. The reclassification does not have any impact on the net income or net assets reported
last year.
(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of K-IFRS 1039 are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity
financial assets, loans and receivables, or as derivative financial assets designated as hedges, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date when the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transactions costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit and loss.
(3) Foreign currency transactions

When preparing of the financial statements, the Group measures and recognizes all the transactions according to the functional currency. The
term, functional currency, is defined as the currency used to conduct operating activities in the primary economic environment and trades in
each entity between the functional currency and other currencies which are converted to the Group’s functional currency to be measured and
recognized.
(4) Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets are defined as a cedant’s net contractual right under a reinsurance contract by K-IFRS 1104 “Insurance Contract” and are
recorded in the amount a reinsurer assumed as insurance contract liabilities. Reinsurance assets are not offset against the relevant insurance
contract liabilities, and reinsurance income or expense arising from the reinsurance arrangements are not offset against the relevant expense
or income resulting from the relevant insurance contracts. The Group considers whether the reinsurance assets are impaired at each
reporting date and if the reinsurance assets are impaired the Group reduces its carrying amount and accordingly, recognizes impairment loss
in profit or loss.
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(5) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes an
expenditure which has directly occurred for the acquisition of the asset. The initial and subsequent costs are recognized as an asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the costs of the asset can be measured reliably.
The other maintenances and repairs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred and the carrying amount of certain parts that are
replaced is derecognized. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of
the related asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
(6) Investment properties

Investment properties are recognized as assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the
Group and the costs of the assets can be measured reliably. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement. The investment properties are also subsequently measured at cost.

Investment properties are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of the assets calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets is
recognized as profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the asset is derecognized. Transfers
are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change in use.
(7) Insurance contract liabilities

•

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Reserve for outstanding claims
The reserve for outstanding claims refers to a provision for claims received but not settled including claims on a lawsuit at the reporting
date. It includes a provision for claims not received, and therefore not yet settled, on the insurance policies where the events causing the
payment of claims have occurred at the reporting date. The amount collectible from exercising the compensation right or disposal of
insured assets acquired by the Group is reported as a deduction from insurance contract liabilities.
(b) Unearned premium reserve
The Group is required to maintain an unearned premium reserve, which is the premium whose payment date belongs to the current year
and whose applicable period has not yet commenced at the end of the reporting period.

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
KRW

Deposits

Financial assets at FVTPL

Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets

Derivative financial assets designated as hedges
Loans

Receivables
Total

Carrying value

USD

298,731

276,143

2,444,769

2,259,908

2,444,769

2,259,908

27,698

25,604

27,698

697,258

1,199,720

668,009

2,506,785

7,842,970

644,535

1,109,004

617,498

2,317,235

7,249,927

1,216,921

684,654

2,506,676

7,876,707

644,535

1,124,904

25,604

632,884

2,317,134

7,281,112

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Term deposits

Overseas deposits
Other deposits
Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

60,500

55,925

99,880

92,328

138,351

127,890

298,731

276,143

6. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

Beneficiary certificates

666,221

615,845

Total

697,258

644,535

2. Translation of consolidated financial statement indicated in foreign currencies.

Securities in foreign currencies

24,667
6,370

22,802
5,888

7. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

3. Cash and cash equivalents

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Total

697,258

Deposits as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Stock

Short-term bank deposits

USD

276,143

5. Deposits

Hybrid equity security is classified as an equity only if its contractual arrangements at the time of the issuance of the security meet the criteria
to be classified as an equity.

Cash on hand

Fair value

KRW

298,731

(8) Hybrid equity security

Assets and liabilities, including equity indicated in the consolidated financial statements, are translated into the U.S. Dollar at the rate of KRW
1,081.80 to USD 1, the telegraphic transfer selling rate of exchange as at December 31, 2017. The profit and loss account is translated at KRW
1,133.20 to USD 1, the average exchange rate of the period.

• Independent Auditors’ Report

4. Financial assets

In accordance with the Insurance Business Act (“IBA”) and the Regulation on Insurance Supervision (“RIS”), the Group is required to maintain
insurance contract liabilities validated by the Group’s appointed actuary, and the details are as follows:
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FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

129,263

119,489

2

129,265

2

119,491

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

Equity investment

112,905

104,368

Special bonds

640,268

591,854

Beneficiary certificates

140,967

130,308

Stock

Government and public bonds
Corporate bonds

Securities in foreign currencies
Others

Total

56,946
10,036

836,948
642,284

4,415

2,444,769

52,640
9,277

773,662
593,718

4,081

2,259,908
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8. Held-to-maturity financial assets

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Special bonds

Securities in foreign currencies
Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

530,327
19,942

649,451

1,199,720

FY 2017
(USD)

1,109,004

Credit loans

Guaranteed loans

76

Other loans
Subtotal

(Allowance for possible loan losses)
(Present value discount)

(Deferred loan fee and costs)

Receivables

Insurance receivables
Accounts receivables
Accrued income

Guarantee deposits
Subtotal

(Allowance for doubtful receivables)
(Present value discount)

Total

Prepaid expenses

Advance payments
Total

FY 2017
(USD)

Marine insurance

339,049

313,412

Surety insurance

15,080

Fire insurance

705

73,141

674,535

623,530

42,934

(3,565)

(445)

39,687

164,101

Comprehensive insurance

114,685

106,013

Personal accident insurance

(411)

(2,326)

2,484,994

2,297,092

41,951

38,779

2,528,076

2,336,917

(6)

(6)

399

732

(21,285)

3,174,794

Overseas inward insurance
Personal annuity

Total

369

677

(19,676)

2,934,733

FY 2017
(USD)

1,768,110

1,634,415

303

280

65,168
5,927

46,013

1,885,521

60,240
5,479

42,534

1,742,948

24,302

87,948

81,298

206,832

191,192

1,381,185

1,276,748

615,513

568,971

1,028

950

3,317,111

3,066,288
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(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Fire insurance

Marine insurance

FY 2017
(KRW)

80,454
88,572

FY 2017
(USD)

74,370
81,875

Automobile insurance

302,551

279,674

Engineering insurance

150,426

139,052

Surety insurance

Workers’ compensation insurance
Liability insurance

Personal accident insurance

Comprehensive insurance
Other casualty insurance

Overseas inward insurance
Total

FY 2017
(KRW)

26,290

(2) Unearned premium reserve

(3,295)

(2,516)

13,940

177,525

Long-term insurance

763

135,377

Liability insurance

212,609

79,124

146,451

158,479

230,000

297,388

31,505

171,443

Other casualty insurance

321,714

34,082

Engineering insurance

FY 2017
(USD)

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Deferred income tax assets

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(KRW)

Other non-financial assets as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Compensation receivables

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Workers’ compensation insurance

10. Other non-financial assets

Reinsurance assets

(1) Reserve for outstanding claims

Automobile insurance

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Loans secured by real-estate

• Independent Auditors’ Report

The Group recognizes insurance contract liabilities in accordance with the IBA and the RIS.
Insurance contract liabilities as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

18,434

600,344

Loans and receivables as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Loans secured by securities

Consolidated Financial Statements • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

490,226

9. Loans and receivables

Loans

•

11. Insurance contract liabilities

Held-to-maturity financial assets as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Government and public bonds
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129,173
8,520

119,406
7,876

133,821

123,702

182,288

168,504

510,848

472,221

102,888
151,104

95,108

139,678

1,840,645

1,701,466

FY 2017

FY 2017

12. Equity

(1) Capital stock

Details of capital stock as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
Number of common shares authorized (shares)

320,000,000

320,000,000

Number of common shares issued and outstanding (shares)

120,369,116

120,369,116

Par value (KRW, USD)

Capital stock (KRW million, USD thousand)

500

60,185

0.5

55,634
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(2) Capital surplus

Capital surplus consists of the following as at December 31, 2017 :
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Paid-in capital in excess of par value

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

72,646

67,152

103,729

Other capital reserve

176,375

Total

95,886

163,038

(3) Capital adjustments

Capital adjustments consist of the following as at December 31, 2017 :
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY 2017
(KRW)

Treasury stock

(35,311)

FY 2017
(USD)

(32,641)

(4) Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of the following as at December 31, 2017 :
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

Loss on valuation of held-to-maturity financial assets

(3,647)

(3,371)

Exchange difference on translating foreign operations

(11,827)

(10,933)

Gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

78

52,966

Asset revaluation surplus

68,998

Gain on valuation of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges

15

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liabilities

(623)

Total

105,882

48,961
63,781
14

(576)

97,876

(5) Retained earnings

Retained earnings as at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Legal reserve

FY 2017
(KRW)

FY 2017
(USD)

19,082

17,639

30,092

Bad debt reserve

Catastrophe reserve

Business rationalization reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings

927,938

467,339

432,001

1,643,600

1,519,320

121,211

Total

27,817

1,003,843

2,033

Voluntary reserve

1,879

112,046

(6) Hybrid equity security

Hybrid equity security as at December 31, 2017 is as follows:
Date issued

Amounts issued
Maturity 2)

Distribution term
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• Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors' Report
The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Korean Reinsurance Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Korean Reinsurance Company (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Korean
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and its
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Korean International Financial Reporting Standards.
March 15, 2018
Ernst & Young Hanyoung

Description 1)

October 21, 2014

USD 200,000,000

30 years, Revolving

4.50% per annum on a face value basis (redetermination of interest rate every 5 years, Step up 100bps once at 10th year)

(1) The

maturity of the security becomes due in 30 years, but it could be early repaid in every 5 years in case of execution of issuer’s option. Therefore, the Group
recorded the security as an equity as it is considered to meet the criteria to be classified as an equity.
(2) The Group can extend the maturity of the security on the same conditions. In addition, the Group would not pay interest if it decides not to pay dividend on the common shares.

This audit report is effective as at March 15, 2018, the independent auditors’ report date. Accordingly, certain material subsequent events or circumstances
may have occurred during the period from the date of the independent auditors’ report to the time this report is used. Such events and circumstances could
significantly affect the accompanying consolidated financial statements and may result in modifications to this report.
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History

83

Global Network Contact

82

Organization

Mar. 19, 1963 Established as a state-owned company, the Korean Non-life Reinsurance Corporation
Feb. 20, 1975 Opened Singapore Liaison Office

Mar. 02, 1978 Reorganized as a publicly owned company, Korean Reinsurance Company
Jun. 26, 1984 Built new headquarters in Susong-dong

Dec. 31, 1996 Total assets surpassed KRW 1 trillion mark

May 27, 1999 Announced the mid to long term growth plan entitled ' Vision 2020 '

2001~

Jan. 04, 2001 Received the 10th Financial Award from M.O.F.E. and the Korea Economic Daily

Feb. 28, 2002 Operating assets surpassed KRW 1 trillion mark
May 28, 2002 Received an A- grade from A.M. Best

Jun. 27, 2002 Renamed Korean Re, with the launch of a new Corporate Identity (CI)
Oct. 12, 2002 Became the largest reinsurance company in Asia

Oct. 20, 2002 Nominated as Reinsurance Company of the Year by the Asia Insurance Review Magazine (Singapore)
Jan. 03, 2004 Received the 13th Financial Award from M.O.F.E. and the Korea Economic Daily

Jan. 27, 2005 Received the Most Admired CEO Award (from the President of the Federation of Korean Industries, 2005)
Nov. 23, 2005 Received the Most Innovative Management in Korea Award (2005)
Dec. 06, 2006 Acquired an A- rating from S&P

Dec. 31, 2006 Total assets surpassed KRW 3 trillion mark
Apr. 08, 2008 Opened Dubai Liaison Office

Apr. 28, 2008 Total assets surpassed KRW 4 trillion mark
Dec.		

Nov.		

2009 Recognized by Reinsurance Magazine as 'Emerging Market Player of the Year'

2010 Ranked the 11th reinsurer in the world and No. 1 in Asia (S&P)

			

Received 'Young Enterpreneur Award of the Year' from Ernst & Young

2011~

Jan. 01, 2011 Received the Dasan Award
Feb.		

Sep.		

2011 Acquired an A rating from A.M. Best

2012 Ranked the 10th reinsurer in the world and No. 1 in Asia (A.M.Best)

Mar. 19, 2013 Celebrated 50th anniversary

Jun. 17, 2013 CEO Jong-Gyu Won was inaugurated
Sep.		

2013 Ranked the 9th reinsurer in the world and No. 1 in Asia (A.M.Best)

Jan. 02, 2014 Declared 'Vision 2050'

Oct. 14, 2014 Issued subordinated capital securities worth USD 200 million
			

S&P rating upgraded from A- to A

Apr. 01, 2015 Established Korean Re Underwriting Ltd. at Lloyd's in London
Feb. 24, 2017 Signed an MOU on business cooperation with IRB Brasil RE
Jul. 01, 2017 Opened Labuan Branch in Malaysia

Dec. 31, 2017 Total assets surpassed KRW 10 trillion mark
Jan. 01, 2018 Opened DIFC Branch in Dubai, the UAE
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Global Network Contact
Head Office

President & CEO

68 Jongno 5 Gil, Jongno-Gu, Seoul,
03151, Korea

Tel (822) 3702-6000
Fax (822) 739-3754

Email service@koreanre.co.kr

Executive Managing Director

Managing Directors

Standing Auditor

http://www.koreanre.co.kr

Overseas Branches and Offices
Singapore Branch

8 Cross Street, #09-02/03 Manulife Tower
Singapore 048424

Tel (65) 6227-6411
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Strategic Planning Team

Property Team 1

Compliance Team

Management Support Team

Property Team 2

Auditing Team

General Affairs Team

Engineering Team

Finance & Actuarial Team

Marine Team

Asset Management Team

Casualty Team

Global Business Team

Long-term & Motor Team

Global Project Team

Life Team

IT Team
Risk Management Team
Claims & Survey Team
Accounting Team
Product Development Team

◀ HOME ▶
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Fax (65) 6227-2778

Email singapore@koreanre.co.kr

Labuan Branch

Brighton Place, Lot U0213-U0215,

Jalan Bahasa 87000 Labuan F.T. Malaysia
Tel (65) 6227-6411

Fax (65) 6227-2778

Email singapore@koreanre.co.kr

DIFC Branch

Unit 1102B, Level 11, The Gate (East),
DIFC, PO Box 506869, Dubai, UAE
Tel (971) 4-355-5028

Fax (971) 4-355-0788

Email dubai@koreanre.co.kr

London Liaison Office

International House, 1 St. Katharine's Way,
London, UK E1W 1UN
Tel (4420) 7265-0031

Fax (4420) 7481-8412

Email london@koreanre.co.kr

• Organization •

Global Network Contact

Tokyo Liaison Office

Marunouchi Mitsui Building 5th FI. No 508, 2-2-2 Marunouchi,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Tel (813) 3201-1673

Fax (813) 3215-5585

Email tokyo@koreanre.co.kr

New York Liaison Office

Room 1506, 111 John Street,
New York, N.Y. 10038 U.S.A.
Tel (1212) 233-3252/3
Fax (1212) 349-0210

Email newyork@koreanre.co.kr

Beijing Liaison Office

Unit 10F-A2, Merchants Tower, Jiangua Road No 118,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022, China
Tel (8610) 6590-6276/6277
Fax (8610) 6590-6278

Email beijing@koreanre.co.kr

Subsidiaries

Korean Re Underwriting Ltd.

International House, 1 St. Katharine's Way,
London, UK E1W 1UN
Tel (4420) 7265-0031

Fax (4420) 7481-8412

Email london@koreanre.co.kr

Worldwide Insurance Services, Ltd.

Suite 3606, 36/F, Central Plaza 18 Habour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Tel (852) 2877-3117/3127
Fax (852) 2877-2019

Email hk@koreanre.co.kr

83

Financial Highlights

Message from the CEO

Board of Management

Summary of 2017

Korean Re Annual Report 2017

Inside Korean Re

Review of Operations

CSR

Market Overview

Financial Review

Corporate Information

◀ HOME ▶

Glossary
Combined Ratio

The sum of the expense ratio and the loss
ratio.

Earned Premium

The portion of the written premium that
is equal to the expired portion of the time
during which the insurance or reinsurance
was in effect.

Expense Ratio

Expenses (other than loss adjustment
expenses) incurred during a specific
period of time, divided by premiums
written during the same period.

84

Facultative Reinsurance

A form of reinsurance whereby each
exposure the ceding company wishes to
reinsure is offered to the reinsurer and
is contained in a single transaction. The
submission, acceptance, and resulting
agreement is required on each individual
risk that the ceding company seeks to
reinsure. That is, the ceding company
negotiates an individual reinsurance
agreement for every policy it will reinsure.
However, the reinsurer is not obliged to
accept every or any submission.

Gross Written Premium

The gross premium income (i.e. written,
instead of earned) of an insurance
company, adjusted for additional or
return premiums but before deducting
any premiums for reinsurance ceded.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)

Liability for future payments on losses that
have already occurred but have not yet
been reported in the reinsurer’s records.

Investment Income

Money earned from invested assets. May
also include realized capital gains or be
reduced by capital losses over the same
period.

Loss Ratio

Losses incurred, expressed as a
percentage of earned premiums.

Non-Proportional Reinsurance

Reinsurance in which the reinsurer’s
response to a loss depends on its size.
So named because the premium in
non-proportional reinsurance is not
proportional to the coverage limits.

Original/Direct/Primary Insurer

The insurer that writes a policy for a
policyholder (which in turn may or may
not create the need for reinsurance).

Proportional Reinsurance

A term describing quota share and surplus
share reinsurance, in which the reinsurer
shares a proportional part of the ceded
insurance liability, premiums, and losses
of the ceding company.

Retention

In reinsurance, the net amount of risk
the ceding company keeps for its own
account.

Risk

Defined variously as uncertainty of loss,
chance of loss, or the difference of the
actual results from the expected ones. The
term is also used to identify the object of
insurance protection, e.g., a building, an
automobile, a human life, or exposure to
liability. In reinsurance, each reinsured
company customarily makes its own rules
for defining a risk.

Risk-Based Capital (RBC)

The amount of capital needed to absorb
the various risks of operating an insurance
business. For example, a higher risk
business requires more capital than one
with lower risks. The calculation is unique
to each company.

Shareholders’ Equity

The value of a company which is the
property of its ordinary shareholders (the
company’s assets less its liabilities).

Soft Market

One side of the market cycle that is
characterized by low rates, high limits,
flexible contracts, and high availability of
coverage.

Treaty Reinsurance

A form of reinsurance in which the
ceding company makes an agreement
to cede certain classes of business to a
reinsurer. The reinsurer, in turn, agrees to
accept all business qualifying under the
agreement, known as the “treaty”. Under
a reinsurance treaty, the ceding company
is assured that all of its risks falling within
the terms of the treaty will be reinsured in
accordance with treaty terms.

Underwriting Income

The excess of premiums earned by a
reinsurer during any reporting period
over the combined total of expenses and
losses incurred during the same period.

85

